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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 22 OCTOBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Myburgh ,  good  

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Good morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  we ready?  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes we are .   Mr  Laher  i s  back  w i th  us  

th is  morn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

ADV MYBURGH:   Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Laher.  10 

MR LAHER:   Morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The oath  you took yeste rday o r  

a f f i rmat ion  w i l l  con t inue to  app ly  today.   You unders tand? 

MR LAHER:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Good morn ing  Mr  Laher.  

MR LAHER:   Morn ing .  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  want  to  s ta r t  o f f  by  ask ing  you a  few 

genera l  quest ions.   You were  a  member  o f  the  negot ia t ion  

team in  re la t ion  to  bo th  o f  the  t ransact ions invo lv ing  the  20 

1064 locomot ives  and the  100 locomot ives .   What  d id  you 

cons ider  your  ro le  to  be  w i th in  these negot ia t ing  teams? 

MR LAHER:   Cha i r  my ro le  was a  suppor t  ro le .   In  essence  

we wou ld  prov ide  f inanc ia l  suppor t  to  the  cha i rpersons 

dur ing  the  negot ia t ions .   We wou ld  keep record  o f  the 
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p r i c ing  as  the  d i f fe ren t  p r ic ing  updates  were  rece ived f rom 

the  b idders  ove r  tha t  per iod  o f  t ime.   We wou ld  prov ide 

in fo rmat ion  to  the  lega l  team in  te rms o f  the i r  cont rac t  

d ra f t ing  p rocess and to  cont r ibu te  to  the  negot ia t ions  on  

f inanc ia l  re la ted  aspects .   The ro le  d id  no t  invo l ve  mak ing  

any dec i s ions.   We d id  no t  have a  de legat ion  to  make any 

dec is ions.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Wel l  d id  you cons ider  you rse l f  s imp ly  to  

be  a  resource  to  Mr  S ingh?  

MR LAHER:   We l l  we were  a  resource  to  the  negot ia t ing  10 

team.  

ADV MYBURGH:   D id  you cons ider  yourse l f  s imp ly  t o  be  a  

resource  to  Mr  S ingh?  

MR LAHER:   I  wou ld  th ink  so  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   You cons ider  tha t  you d id  no t  have to  

exerc ise  any judgment?  

MR LAHER:   I  wou ld  have had to  exerc i se  some judgment .  

ADV MYBURGH:   You wou ld  have had to  exe rc i se  

judgment?  

MR LAHER:   Ja .  20 

ADV MYBURGH:   And ac t  in  the  best  in te res t s  o f  your  

employer?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t  –  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   You were  no t  jus t  s i t t ing  there  w i th  your  

eyes and ears  c losed?  
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MR LAHER:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  le t  us  then redef ine  your  ro le .  

MR LAHER:   R igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   What  was i t?  

MR LAHER:   So  to  p rov ide  f inanc ia l  suppor t  and prov ide  

input  th roughout  the  negot ia t ion  process.   I  th ink  I  have 

spe l t  i t  ou t  in  my s ta tement .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.  

MR LAHER:   Somewhere .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And i f  you had concerns to  ra ise  them.  10 

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  when you say you d id  no t  make any 

dec is ion  you were  s t i l l  ob l iged i f  you  came across 

someth ing  tha t  d id  no t  look  r igh t  to  ra ise  the  issue? 

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Which  you d id .  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And you were  a lso  under  an  ob l iga t ion  to  

ensure  tha t  any query  tha t  you had was p roper l y  sa t is f ied  

in  your  m ind?  20 

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   That  was your  ro le?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   D id  you eve r  suspect  tha t  the  award  o f  

these two tenders  was co r rup t  in  any way?  
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MR LAHER:   A t  tha t  per iod  o f  t ime no.   I  had no susp ic ion  

o f  anyth ing  un toward  happen ing .  Maybe i t  was because we  

were  so  invo l ved  in  the  de ta i l .   Maybe i t  was because we 

were  so  i nvo lved  w i th  –  under  p ressure .  I  mean i t  was a  

very  pressur i s ing  env i ronment  we were  dea l ing  w i th  

mul t ip le  i ssues a t  the  same t ime.   But  a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime 

no I  had no susp ic ions.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Not  the  s l igh tes t  susp ic ion?  

MR LAHER:   Not  tha t  I  can reca l l .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Not  the  s l igh tes t  susp ic ion  o f  any 10 

i r regu lar i t ies  a t  p lay?  

MR LAHER:   Not  tha t  I  can reca l l .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Desp i te  a l l  the  quer ies  tha t  you ra ised?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .   So no susp ic ions.  

ADV MYBURGH:   A re  you cer ta in  about  tha t?  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  fo r  example  and we w i l l  come to  the  

de ta i l  in  a  moment .   You were  invo l ved in  nego t ia t ions  

where  you had done a  reasonab le  m isca lcu la t ion  o f  R41  

mi l l ion .  20 

MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   You go in to  the  negot ia t ions  and o f fe r  i s  

made o f  be low tha t  –  th ree  days  la te r  you to ld  Mr  Mole fe  

has reached an agreement  ou ts ide  o f  the  negot ia t ions  a t  a  

much increased f igure .   You d id  no t  th ink  tha t  was i r regu lar  
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in  any way?  

MR LAHER:   I  quest ioned i t  as  I  gave ev idence yes terday.   

I  d id  quest ion  i t  w i th  Mr  S ingh.   So I  d id  the  ca l cu la t ion .   

My ca lcu la t ion… 

ADV MYBURGH:   Mr  Laher  p lease answer  my quest ion?   

D id  you th ink  tha t  was i r regu lar  o r  no t?  

MR LAHER:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Not?  

MR LAHER:   I  rece ived an adequate  response f rom Mr  

S ingh.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   Wel l  in  fac t  you d id  no t  even ask h im.   

We wi l l  come to  your  s ta tement  in  a  moment .   You d id  no t  

ask  h im  about  tha t  i ssue.   About  the  fac t  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  

had done a  dea l  ou ts ide  o f  the  negot ia t ing  team.  

MR LAHER:   Wel l  Mr  Mole fe  was par t  o f  the  s tee r ing  

commi t tee  and they were  the  ones mak ing  the  dec is ions.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.   But  you d id  no t  quest ion  tha t?  

MR LAHER:   We l l  I  quest ioned why the  pr i ce  was  h igher  

than the  pr i ce  I  ca lcu la ted  wh ich  is  what  i s  in  my 

s ta tement .   And tha t  quest ion  was  asked to  Mr  S ingh and  20 

Mr  S ingh prov ided an adequate  response to  me  a t  tha t  

po in t  in  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Wel l  we w i l l  come to  your  s ta tement .   

Now wi th  the  benef i t  o f  h inds igh t  what  i s  your  v iew on 

i r regu lar i t ies?  
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MR LAHER:   So  f rom what  I  have  heard  and what  I  have 

seen in  the  med ia  and what  I  have seen happen ing  a t  the  

commiss ion  I  mean there  have been  w i tnesses tha t  have  

sa id  some s tar t l ing  th ings and obv ious l y  w i th  tha t  ev idence 

a  m ind i t  does seem l i ke  the re  was someth ing  un toward  

happen ing  in  the  background.  

ADV MYBURGH:   You do not  th ink  you cou ld  have done  

more  Mr  Laher?  

MR LAHER:   I  th ink  I  d id  the  best  tha t  I  cou ld  a t  tha t  po in t  

in  t ime.   I  ra ised a  number  o f  i ssues as  per  the  ev idence I  10 

gave yesterday.   I  ra ised the  issues th rough emai ls .   I  

ra ised the  issues  th rough the  repor ts  tha t  I  submi t ted .   I  

ra ised the  issues  verba l l y.   I  ra ised the  issues w i th  b idders  

d i rec t l y.   I  ra ised  the  issues w i th  my pr inc ip le  who  was Mr  

S ingh.   I  ra ised the  issues w i th  many peop le  in  the  same 

room not  on ly  Mr  S ingh.   So when I  ra ised the  issues  

Transnet  in te rna l  aud i t  were  there .   When I  ra i sed the  – the  

wr i t ten  issues I  addressed the  i ssues to  the  CFET th rough  

to  the  board  and  Transnet  s tee r ing  commi t tee .   Whis t  in  

negot ia t ions  peop le  tha t  were  in  the  room when I  ra ised  20 

the  issues wou ld  inc lude the  head o f  lega l .   The issues I  

ra ised around the  Durban move inc lud ing  emai ls  sent  to  

the  Group Ch ie f  P rocurement  Off i cer  as  we l l  as  the  Head 

o f  Lega l  as  we l l  as  the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i ce r  o f  the  

organ isa t ion .  
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ADV MYBURGH:   Cou ld  you have done more  yes or  no?  

MR LAHER:   I  do  no t  th ink  I  cou ld  have done more .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  even now re f lec t ing  on  the  pos i t ion  

you s t i l l  be l ieve  you cou ld  have done no more?  

MR LAHER:   A t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime I  d id  as  much as  I  cou ld .  

ADV MYBURGH:   You cou ld  no t  have been any more  

v ig i lan t?  

MR LAHER:   My  fear  i f  I  was any more  v ig i lan t  I  wou ld  

have been insubord ina te .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.   But  we w i l l  come to  t ha t .   So you  10 

s topped shor t  o f  be ing  more  v ig i lan t  because you  d id  no t  

want  to  be  insubord ina te ,  i s  tha t  what  you say ing?  

MR LAHER:   No.   I  am say ing… 

ADV MYBURGH:   That  i s  p rec ise ly  what  you say.  

MR LAHER:   I  sa id  I  ra ised as  much as  I  cou ld .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.   No tha t  i s  no t  what  you say ing .   

You say ing  tha t  I  d id  no t  ra ise  anyth ing  more  fo r  fear  of  

be ing  insubord ina te .  

MR LAHER:   Ja  –  so  I  ra ised as  much as  I  cou ld .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  i f  you  bear  w i th  me.   I t  fo l lows f rom 20 

tha t  tha t  perhaps  you cou ld  have  ra ised more  bu t  i t  was  

th rough fear  tha t  you d id  no t .   I s  tha t  as  I  unders tand your  

ev idence?  

MR LAHER:   In  my v iew a t  tha t  po in t  I  ra ised as  much as  I  

cou ld .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Laher.  

MR LAHER:   Sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  l i s ten  to  the  quest ion  care fu l l y.   I  

unders tood you to  be  say ing  you  ra ised as  –  you  ra ised 

quest ions as  much as  you cou ld  w i thout  –  un less  you were  

go ing  to  be  insubord ina te .   In  o ther  words you d id  no t  want  

to  go  beyond a  cer ta in  po in t  in  ra is ing  issues.  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because you thought  tha t  go ing  beyond a  

cer ta in  po in t  wou ld  be  insubord ina te ,  you accept  tha t?  10 

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  what  you mean?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  My Myburgh do you want  to  … 

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  hope tha t  has he lped?  

MR LAHER:   And  the  exp lanat ions  I  rece ived obv ious l y  to  

my sa t is fac t ion  when I  d id  ra i se  those quest ions.  

ADV MYBURGH:   You cannot  run  those two l ines  together.   

So le t  me f rom the  commiss ion ’s  po in t  o f  v iew put  my cards  20 

on the  tab le .   One o f  th ings tha t  th is  commiss ion  i s  go ing  

to  have to  cons ider  in  the  f ina l  ana lys i s  i s  how d id  a l l  o f  

these procurement  i r regu lar i t ies  ac tua l l y  happen.   And 

what  the  commiss ion  is  go ing  to  have to  look  a t  is  peop le  

l i ke  you obv ious l y  we l l  educated,  in te l l igent  peop le  why d id  
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they  no t  repor t  any i r regu lar i t ies?   How d id  i t  happen?  So 

you are  no t  on  t r ia l  here .   Th is  i s  no t  a  d i sc ip l inary  

hear ing .   But  I  am ask ing  you to  take  the  commiss ion  in to 

your  conf idence and what  you need to  dea l  w i th  i s  th is .   

When you got  the  answer  f rom Mr  S ingh is  i t  tha t  you  

t rus ted  h is  answer  as  be ing  co r rec t  o r  i s  i t  tha t  you were 

fear fu l  o f  in te r rogat ing  any fu r ther  and there fo re  you  

s topped.   Those are  two d i f fe ren t  th ings.   You unders tand  

tha t?  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   So  wh ich  o f  i t  then was i t  –  t rus t  o r  fear?  

MR LAHER:   Trus t  –  I  t rus ted  h is  answers .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  where  does  the  fear  then enter  the  

equat ion?  

MR LAHER:   Th i s  was jus t  someth ing  a t  the  back o f  your  

head.   I t  i s  someth ing  –  i t  i s  a lways there .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Mr  Laher  le t  me g ive  you an example .   

We wi l l  come to  i t  in  a  moment .   Dur ing  the  nego t ia t ions  

you ident i f ied  tha t  CSR was us ing  the  inco r rec t  exchange 

ra te  to  –  counted  fo r  a lmost  R3 mi l l ion  o f  the i r  p r ice .   You 20 

to ld  Mr  S ingh tha t  and he sa id  to  you,  do  no t  wor ry  

negot ia t ions  are  a l l  about  the  f ina l  p r ice .   And you  

accepted tha t .  

MR LAHER:   I t  i s  a….  

ADV MYBURGH:   You accepted tha t?  
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MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Negot ia t ions  are  a l l  about  the  f ina l  p r i ce  

they are  no t  about  the  const i tuent  components .   You 

accepted tha t?  

MR LAHER:   I  accepted i t  and he d id  say more .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Now you a re  a  char te red accountant .   I  

take  i t  you  do not  –  you wou ld  no t  agree w i th  tha t  a t  a l l  

tha t  negot ia t ions  are  no t  jus t  about  the  f ina l  p r ice .   

Negot ia t ions  are  about  the  const i tuent  component  sure l y  

mak ing  up the  f ina l  p r ice  tha t  i s  what  you were  do ing .   Yes 10 

when Mr  S ingh to ld  you tha t  you jus t  le t  i t  go  and accepted  

i t .  

MR LAHER:   We l l  he  exp la ined i t .   He exp la ined fu r ther  

than jus t  i t  i s  about  the  f ina l  p r i ce .   He exp la ined  i t  i s  a  

p rocess o f  negot ia t ion  wh ich  is  a  p rocess o f  g ive  and take .   

And you got  to  cons ider  the  r i sk  tha t  the  b idders  were  

w i l l i ng  to  accept .   So he prov ided a  ra t iona l  exp lanat ion  to  

me.   I  mean when you do any type o f  negot ia t ion  i t  i s  

a lways a  g ive  and take .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Bu t  Mr  Laher  negot ia t ions  are  no t  –  you 20 

know jus t  about  the  f ina l  p r ice .   Cor rec t?  

MR LAHER:   Wel l  i t  i s  about  the  process tha t  happens to  

ge t  to  the  f ina l  p r ice .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes you agree w i th  me i t  i s  no t  jus t  about  

the  f ina l  p r ice .   I  mean when you go in to  negot ia t ions  I  
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hope th is  i s  no t  what  happens o f  th is  sor t .   You do  not  jus t  

say  we l l  pu t  up  your  f ina l  p r i ce .   You in te r rogate  how you  

get  to  the  pr ice  tha t  i s  what  i t  i s  a l l  about  co r rec t?  

MR LAHER:   Yes.   Ja  tha t  i s  what  I  d id .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  when Mr  S ingh to ld  you a  char te red 

accountant  do  no t  wor ry  about  tha t  R3 mi l l ion  i t  i s  a l l  about  

the  f ina l  p r ice .   You jus t  accepted tha t .  

MR LAHER:   We l l  he  d id  no t  jus t  say  do  not  wor ry  about  

the  –  he  had sa id  i t  bu t  he  sa id  [ 00 :11 :40]  the  th ings wh ich  

jus t i f y  i t  what  he  was say ing .  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   Wel l  we are  go ing  to  come to  tha t .   

Because the re  is  a  l ine  in  your  s ta tement  you wr i te  I  am 

in te res ted  to  see what  i t  –  what  i t  means.   So where  do  we 

end he re?  Was there  any fea r?   Was there  a  degree o f  

fear  tha t  s topped you f rom in te r rogat ing  some o f  these  

answers  fu r the r?   Yes or  no?  

MR LAHER:   I f  there  was i t  was to  a  ve ry  smal l  degree.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Sor ry  yes or  no?  

MR LAHER:   Very  smal l  degree.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  the  answer  i s  yes?  20 

MR LAHER:   Ja  bu t  a  very  sma l l  degree.   I t  was more  

about  t rus t  what  he  was say ing .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Bu t  you to ld  the  Cha i rperson tha t  you d id  

no t  p ress  the  issue any fu r ther  fo r  fear  o f  insubord ina t ion .   

Cor rec t  
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MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And you say tha t  i s  on ly  a  ve ry  smal l  

i ssue.  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So tha t  i s  how I  unders tand your  

ev idence.  

MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Now why wou ld  you be insubord ina te?   

That  i s  another  th ing  I  do  no t  unders tand.   And i t  i s  

another  th ing  tha t  the  commiss ion  is  go ing  to  have  to  look  10 

a t  because many employees i n  your  pos i t ion  wou ld  say  

tha t .   But  why are  insubord ina te  i f  you  are  a  member  or  a  

negot ia t ing  team –  you are  no t  jus t  a  ca lcu la tor  –  you not  a  

s tenographer?   You there  to  exerc ise  judgment .   Why you  

insubord ina te  i f  you  ask  more  than one or  two quest ions  

about  an  i ssue?  How does tha t  t rans la te  in to  

insubord ina t ion?  

MR LAHER:   So  as  I  sa id  i t  was a  ve ry  smal l  e lement .   I  

t rus ted  h is  answer  tha t  he  gave me.   I  ra ised the  issues  

tha t  were  necessary  to  be  ra i sed and the  answer  was –  20 

was… 

ADV MYBURGH:   You not  answer ing  my quest ion?  Why i f  

you in te r rogate  th ings fu r ther  in  a  cour teous way why 

wou ld  tha t  const i tu te  insubord ina t ion?  Do you  know what  

insubord ina t ion  is?  
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MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   I t  i s  the  re fusa l  to  obey typ ica l l y  a  lawfu l  

and reasonab le  ins t ruc t ion .   I f  you  a  member  o f  a  

negot ia t ing  team and you have a  robust  debate  w i th  Mr  

S ingh sure ly  tha t  does not  const i tu te  insubord ina t ion?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t  so  tha t  robust  debate  d id  happen.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Wel l  we do not  see tha t .   I  mean f rom 

your  s ta tement  you ra i se  a  concern  you get  an  answer  and  

you accept  i t .   There  does not  seem to  be  a  robust  debate .  

MR LAHER:   Wel l  there  was a  debate  about  i t  obv ious ly.   I t  10 

is  no t  go ing  to  be  –  I  say  someth ing  he  g ives  me an answer  

immedia te ly  and I  accept  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Wel l  in  fac t  in  your  s ta tement  there  is  no  

re f lec t ion  o f  any debate .  

MR LAHER:   I  am c la r i f y ing  tha t  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  why wou ld  you have cons ide red tha t  

i t  wou ld  be  insubord ina t ion  –  i t  wou ld  have been  

insubord ina t ion  to  ra ise  leg i t imate  issues wh ich  you were  

en t i t led  to  ra ise?  

MR LAHER:   So  Cha i r  I  d id  ra ise  the  leg i t imate  issues and  20 

we d id  have the  debate .   So I  mean du r ing  the  debate  I  

wou ld  have deba ted w i th  h im my v iews and I  suppose a t  

the  back o f  my m ind there  was a  l i t t le  fear  tha t  i f  I  debated 

i t  too  v igo rous l y  then i t  i s  –  I  mean I  am bas ica l l y  te l l ing 

h im he does not  know what  he  is  ta lk ing  about .   And he 
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was a  respected  ind iv idua l .   I  mean h igh ly  exper ienced –  

h igh l y  in te l l igent  and he was my sen ior  –  he  was my  

pr inc ip le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  were  you no t  there  a t  leas t  in  par t  to  

adv ise  h im and the  o thers?  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So?  So why wou ld  –  why wou ld  you have  

thought  tha t  g iv ing  h im your  honest  adv i se  wou ld  be  

insubord ina t ion?  Would  const i tu te  insubord ina t ion?  

MR LAHER:   So  I  gave h im my honest  adv i ce  and we had  10 

the  debate  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  debate  became v igo rous and I  

cont inued a long  tha t  l ine .   I t  cou ld  have resu l ted  in  

insubord ina t ion  bu t  tha t  was a  ve ry  smal l  fear  a t  the  back 

o f  my head.   I  mean the  exp lanat ions he  was g i v ing  to  me 

a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime seemed reasonab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  –  so  wha t  i s  your  answer  to  my 

quest ion?  Why wou ld  you have thought  tha t  i f  you  gave  

h im what  was your  honest  adv ice  tha t  wou ld  be  regarded 

as  insubord ina t ion?  

MR LAHER:   Cha i r  I  suppose there  is  a lways tha t  l i t t le  fear  20 

when you dea l ing  w i th  someone h igher  than you – someone 

tha t  i s  more  sen ior.   There  is  a lways tha t  l i t t le  fear  tha t  you 

got  to  t rea t  them wi th  respect  and you know jus t  a  l i t t le  

fear  a t  the  back o f  your  head.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  respect  does  not  mean you are  –  you  
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agree w i th  someth ing  he  says i f  you  do not  genera l l y  agree 

w i th  i t  –  i t  i s  no t?   You can have a  –  can ra i se  i ssues and  

you have a  deba te  –  you do not  agree w i th  h im;  he  does 

not  agree w i th  you.  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  he  has the  power  to  make a  dec is ion  

he  makes h is  dec is ion  he  can fo l low your  adv ice  or  no t  

fo l low adv ice  bu t  you have –  you have g iven h im your  

honest  adv ice  so  why wou ld  do ing  tha t  have been 

insubord ina t ion  i n  your  m ind?  10 

MR LAHER:   Cha i r  as  I  sa id  I  –  I  gave h im –  I  gave h im my 

honest  op in ion .   I  gave h im the  –  what  I  wanted to  ge t  h im 

and we had the  debate  about  i t .   The response he gave me 

was –  was adequate .   So I  mean as  I  sa id  ear l ie r  i t  was –  i t  

was a  very  smal l  fear  o f  insubord ina t ion  a t  the  back o f  my 

mind but  i t  was  not  rea l l y  insubord ina t ion  tha t  was the  

issue i t  was tha t  I  t rus ted  what  he  to ld  me.   I  had no 

reason to  be l ieve  tha t  he  to ld  me anyth ing  tha t  was 

untoward .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you s t i l l  th ink  tha t  as  you s i t  there  do  20 

you s t i l l  th ink  tha t  you shou ld  have  had tha t  fear?  

MR LAHER:   Wi th  h inds igh t  and see ing  what  is  be ing  

presented a t  the  commiss ion  ja  maybe I  shou ld  have – 

shou ld  have jus t  –  ja  been insubord ina te .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry.  
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MR LAHER:   Maybe I  shou ld  have gone down the  road o f  

be ing  insubord ina te  w i th  h inds igh t  and see ing  what  we  

have seen happen ing  a t  the  commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  there  wou ld  have been  noth ing  

insubord ina te  Mr  Laher  about  you  honest ly  pu t t ing  your  –  

your  v iews.   There  wou ld  have been noth ing  insubord ina te  

about  tha t .   Do you not  agree?  

MR LAHER:   Yes .   But  Cha i r  I  th ink  the  pr inc ip le  i s  I  d id  

pu t  my v iews ac ross and I  d id  have the  debate  so  i t  was  

not  l i ke  I  d id  no t  do  i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR LAHER:   I  d id  pu t  my v iews across and I  d id  have the  

debate .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no  we accept  –  we accept  tha t  bu t  

you –  you have  suggested tha t  you d id  no t  go  –  you  

s topped a t  a  cer ta in  po in t  because you thought  go ing  

beyond tha t  po in t  wou ld  be  insubord ina t ion .   Do you  accept  

now tha t  there  wou ld  have been no insubord ina t ion  i f  you  

had not  s topped?  As long as  you put  your  v iews in  a  

normal  way,  in  a  co l leg ia l  way but  you do not  –  you put  20 

them.  

MR LAHER:   Cha i r  I… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you accept  tha t  now tha t  there  wou ld  

have been no insubord ina t ion?  

MR LAHER:   Cha i r  I  do  no t  know about  tha t .   I  mean I  do  
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no t  know how Mr  S ingh wou ld  have taken me not  agree ing  

w i th  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Mr  Myburgh jus t  gave  you a  

de f in i t ion  o f  insubord ina t ion .   Remember  he  jus t  gave you  

a  de f in i t ion  o f  insubord ina t ion .   A re fusa l  to  obey a  lawfu l  

and reasonab le  ins t ruc t ion .    

MR LAHER:   Ja… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wou ld  tha t  have been insubord ina t ion?  

MR LAHER:   Cha i r  shoo I  do  no t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  a lso  you have not  sa id  anyth ing  tha t  10 

suggests  tha t  Mr  S ingh was known to  you to  have done 

cer ta in  th ings to  j un io r  members  o f  s ta f f  i f  they  s tood up to  

h im on cer ta in  po in ts .   You have not  suggested tha t .   I  take  

i t  tha t  there  was no h is to ry  o f  h im  act ing  l i ke  tha t  tha t  was 

known to  you?  

MR LAHER:   Look he was known to  ra ise  h is  vo ice  and 

have a  temper  so  he  was I  mean  up and down.   He cou ld  

be  ca lm a t  one s tage and then sudden ly  you know lose  i t .   

So  I  mean he was  known to  be  someth ing  l i ke  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  tha t  was no t  someth ing  tha t  was in  20 

your  m ind?  

MR LAHER:   Obv ious l y  there  is  t ha t  l i t t le  fear  a t  the  back 

o f  you r  head tha t  you know i t  cou ld  happen to  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Thank you.   By  the  t ime o f  these 
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negot ia t ions  in  2014 how long had you been employed a t  

Transnet?  

MR LAHER:   Fo r  I  th ink  i t  was about  n ine  years  then.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.   And  you were  a  char te red  

accountant?  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And are  a  char te red accountant?  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And you accept  tha t  you bound by  the  – 

your  p ro fess iona l  ru les?  10 

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Le t  us  dea l  then  w i th  the  increase in  the 

ETC o f  the  100 locomot ives .   So you accept  tha t  there  was  

a  cons iderab le  increase in  the  ETC f rom R3.8  b i l l i on  to  

R4.8  b i l l i on?  Cor rec t?  

MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And tha t  was in  a  very  shor t  space o f  

t ime.   The bus iness case or  we can go to  the  documents  i f  

need be was agreed in  January  o f  2014 and by  May 2014  

they –  the  recommendat ion  tha t  was made  in  the  20 

memorandum tha t  you p repared fo r  Mr  S ingh was accepted.   

Cor rec t?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  there  –  th is  very  b ig  change an 

increase came about  in  a  shor t  space o f  t ime.   Cor rec t?  
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MR LAHER:   Yes to  space and paramete rs .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Jus t  Mr  Laher  you accept  i t  came about  

in  a  shor t  space o f  t ime? 

MR LAHER:   No.   No.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Not .   A l r igh t .   Between January  and 

May?  

MR LAHER:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH:   You say tha t  i s  an  ex tended per iod?  

MR LAHER:   There  was an ex tended per iod .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Now –  we l l  le t  me ask you th i s .   You 10 

accept  tha t  in  January  o f  2014 the  bus iness case number 

was accepted.  

MR LAHER:   I t  was approved in  January  –  I  th ink  i t  was 

approved in  January  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes wou ld  –  th is  comes f rom your  own 

documents  I  w i l l  take  you there .   And then we know in  May  

the  increase number  was accepted .  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   A l r igh t .   Now you had done a  reason – a  

so  ca l led  reasonab i l i t y  ca lcu la t ion .  20 

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   For  Mr  S ingh tha t  worked out  a t  R4.1  

b i l l i on  rea l l y.   R41 mi l l ion  per  locomot ive .   And le t  us  go  to  

your  –  your  s ta tement .   Th i s  i s  a t  Bund le  4 [a ]  page 504.   

So you do and I  d i rec t  you r  a t ten t ion  to  paragraph 27.   You 
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had done your  reasonab i l i t y  ca lcu la t ion  o f  R41 mi l l ion  tha t  

you dea l  w i th  in  paragraph 26.  

“Dur ing  the  nego t ia t ions  Mr  S ingh  I  take  i t  

p i t ched a  pr i ced a t  R38.5 . ”  

MR LAHER:   Mr  J iyane.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Wou ld  tha t  –  who wou ld  t ha t  person have 

been?  

MR LAHER:   Mr  J iyane.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Mr  J iyane.   A l r igh t  so  tha t  accorded 

essent ia l l y  w i th  the  bus iness case  number.  10 

MR LAHER:   I  do  no t  know why he  p i t ched R3.5 .  

ADV MYBURGH:   That  accorded  w i th  the  bus iness case  

number.  

MR LAHER:   Ja  the  bus iness case  was R3.8 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  Mr  Myburgh.   You sa id  Bund le  

4 [a ]  and what  page?  

ADV MYBURGH:   We a t  page 508.  

CHAIRPERSON:   508.   No I  do  no t  have 508 on Bund le  [a ] .  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  am sor ry  –  I  beg your  pardon then we  

are  in  Bund le  [b ]  the  smal l  f i l e .   I  am sor ry.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.    

ADV MYBURGH:   So  a t  pa ragraph 26 you ta lk  about  your  

reasonab i l i t y  ca l cu la t ion .  

MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Then a t  27  you  have conf i rmed tha t  the  



22 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 289 
 

Page 23 of 89 
 

cha i rperson as  you say was Mr  J iyane who p i t ches the  

pr ice  3 .5 .   CSR they wanted 49 and they re fused to  come 

down.  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And then you go on to  say we l l  you never  

accepted tha t  e tce te ra .   But  what  I  am in te res ted  in  i s  

parag raph 28.   So you were  present  a t  the  nego t ia t ions  

where  the  38 .5  o f fe r  i s  made and where  CSR wanted  49.  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Which  on  the  face  o f  i t  was  h igh ly  10 

in f la ted  obv ious ly.  

MR LAHER:   Hm.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Cor rec t .  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   You were  the re .  

MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And then a t  28  you say:  

“A day or  two la te r  Mr  S ingh te l l s  us  tha t  Mr  

Mole fe  has agreed upon the  payment  te rms 

and a  pr ice  o f  R44 mi l l ion . ”  20 

Is  tha t  r igh t?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   That  i s  be fore  any board  approva l ,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH:   That  i s  ou ts ide  o f  the  negot ia t ions .  

MR LAHER:   Yes.   Outs ide  o f  the  negot ia t ions  we were  

invo l ved in .   Remember  we were  no t  appo in ted  in to  those 

negot ia t ions  we were  jus t  to ld  to  go  and ass i s t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  beg your  pa rdon.  

MR LAHER:   We were  no t  appo in ted  in to  the  negot ia t ions .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes bu t  you were  par ty  to  the  

negot ia t ions .  

MR LAHER:   We were  there  –  ja  we were  there .  

ADV MYBURGH:   You cannot  d is tance yourse l f  f rom th is  10 

Mr  Laher.  

MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Th i s  i s  a  fo rmal  p rocess is  tha t  no t  so?  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   I t  was he ld  –  jus t  remind  us  where  i t  was 

he ld?  

MR LAHER:   I t  was a t  Webber  Wentze l ’s  o f f i ces .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.  

MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  there  was  not  another  negot ia t ion  20 

between the  one  you speak to  a t  paragraph 27 and 28,  

cor rec t?   There  was no –  anothe r  meet ing?  

MR LAHER:   Not  tha t  I  was invo lved in  no .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  th is  must  have come as a  b i t  o f  a  

surpr i se  to  you?  
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MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   More  par t i cu la r ly  because –  and I  

suppose the  te rm i t se l f  i s  impor tan t .   Your  reasonab i l i t y  

ca l cu la t ion  was R3 mi l l ion  per  locomot ive  less .  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Whereas you had tha t  work .  

MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Were  you very  surp r ised by  th is?  

MR LAHER:   I  was surpr ised but  I  –  tha t  i s  why I  ra i sed the  

quest ion  to  Mr  S ingh.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   Le t  us  jus t  dea l  w i th  one th ing  a t  a  t ime 

i f  you do not  m ind.   Were  you su rp r ised?  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Ja .   Were  you pe rhaps shocked?  

MR LAHER:   I  do  no t  th ink  I  was shocked.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Wel l  Mr  Laher  le t  us  jus t  look  a t  what  

happens.   You in  a  negot ia t ion  where  38 .5  i s  o f fe red .   You 

have done a  reasonab i l i t y  ca lcu la t ion  o f  41 .   CSR want  an  

in f la ted  49  and two days la te r  you to ld  l i te ra l l y  ou t  o f  the 

b lue  tha t  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  has agreed on 44.   That  must  20 

have shocked you presumably  or  was tha t  how th ings  

worked a t  Transnet?  

MR LAHER:   That  was a  p rocess  so  we –  as  I  say  in  the  

negot ia t ion  sess ions we were  in  the  pr i ces  were  never  

agreed.   I t  was a lways they wou ld  come back to  us  and te l l  
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us  [ ta lk ing  over  one another ] .  

ADV MYBURGH:   You remember  my quest ion?  I t  i s  rea l l y  

qu i te  s imp le .   I  know –  we know what  your  case  is  I  am 

ask ing  you spec i f i c  quest ions.   Were  you shocked by  tha t?  

MR LAHER:   I  do  no t  th ink  I  was shocked.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Bu t  you were  a t  leas t  surpr ised?  

MR LAHER:   Surpr ised ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Okay we l l  le t  us  leave i t  a t  tha t .   So 

when you say a t  parag raph 29:  

“That  I  po in ted  out  to  Mr  S ingh  tha t  the  10 

Mi tsu i  quote  was cheaper. ”  

When d id  you do tha t?  

MR LAHER:   When we rece ived the  no t i f i ca t ion  tha t  that  

was go ing  to  be  the  f ina l .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  how d id  i t  work?   You had a  

negot ia t ing  meet ing  a  day or  two before .   Then you were  

to ld  o f  Mr  Mole fe ’s  dec is ion .  

MR LAHER:   ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Was tha t  then a t  a  –  a t  th is  meet ing  or  

d iscuss ion  you had a  day o r  two… 20 

MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   A f te r  the  las t  negot ia t ion .  

MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  you sa id  to  h im,  we l l  bu t  tha t  is  more  

expens ive  than Mi tsu i .  
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MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And was i t?  

MR LAHER:   I t  was.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Substant ia l l y?  

MR LAHER:   I  cannot  reca l l  what  the  Mi tsu i  quote  was but  

ja  and the  Mi tsu i  quote  f rom a  year  be fore  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Was i t  substan t i a l l y  more?  

MR LAHER:   I t  was more  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  was  

substant ia l .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Wel l  we re l y ing  on  you;  you  are  a  10 

char te red accoun tant .  

MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   You were  invo lved in  these negot ia t ions .   

You put  up  a l l  these documents  in  th is  hear ing .   Can you  

te l l  us  –  I  mean presumably  i f  i t  was jus t  a  l i t t le  b i t  more  

you wou ld  no t  have ra ised i t?  

MR LAHER:   Ja .   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Was i t  a  s ign i f i can t  increase –  yes or  

no?  

MR LAHER:   I  do  no t  th ink  so  no .  20 

ADV MYBURGH:   Then why d id  you say Mi tsu i  i s  cheaper  i f  

i t  was not  s ign i f i can t?  

MR LAHER:   I t  was cheaper  because the  pr i ce  was  

cheaper.   I  w i l l  have to  go  and check the  numbers  aga in  I  

cannot  reca l l  a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime.  
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ADV MYBURGH:   Bu t  on  the  face  o f  i t  i t  wou ld  have been  

s ign i f i can t  because tha t  i s  why you made the  po in t .   I  mean  

we a re  no t  ta lk ing  about  R50 he re .  

MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Cor rec t?  

MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   On the  face  o f  i t .  

MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   R igh t .   And you say:  

“ I  was to ld  by  Mr  S ingh tha t  the  dec i s ion  to  10 

go  to  CRS had a l ready been approved by  

the  board  fo r  reasons exp la ined in  a  

memorandum. ”  

MR LAHER:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Bu t  tha t  o f  course  does not  answer  the  

pr ice  quest ion  does i t?   I  mean the  prob lem was tha t  th is  

was too much, and he says to you but  we have al ready 

decided to go to  CSR.  That  hardly answers your  concern 

about i t  being too expensive.   Correct? 

MR LAHER :    Yes,  but  i t  was a di fferent  locomot ive.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  but  the point  that  I  make is,  i t  

does not  answer the quest ion.   I t  does not  answer the 

concern.   In other  words,  you – and you must correct  me i f  I  

am wrong.    

 You come to learn of  th is which is substant ia l ly in  
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access of  your reason-abi l i ty calcu lat ion.   You say you are 

surpr ised.    

 You say to Singh.   But  th is is more than Mitsui .   He 

says:   Yes,  but  we have agreed to go to CSR.  I t  does not  

answer the quest ion about the pr ice being too much in your 

mind.   Correct? 

MR LAHER :    Yes.   CSR had a di fferent  locomot ive.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Just  answer my quest ion.   You said to 

him.  You compared i t  to Mitsui .   You said th is  is too 

expensive or . . . [ in tervenes]  10 

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Or i t  is beyond what they had offered.   

He said we have al ready agreed to go CSR.  That  does not  

answer the quest ion,  does i t?  

MR LAHER :    No,  but  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.  

MR LAHER :    I  mean, i t  is for that  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see.  

MR LAHER :    . . . i t  is for the discussion af terwards.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  you see there is an example of  20 

Mr Singh just  blowing you off .   Did you think you were going 

to be insubordinate i f  you said to him:  But  Mr Singh,  that  

does not  answer my quest ion.    

 I  accept  that  you might  have agreed to go to CSR but  

th is pr ice is too h igh.   You do not  do that .   He says:   Wel l ,  
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we have agreed to go to CSR.  So you just  leave i t ,  r ight? 

MR LAHER :    Ja,  wel l  there is reasons therefore and that  is 

what he explained.   I  mean, he explained,  i t  is  a di fferent  

locomot ive.   The locomot ive is a di f ferent  speci f icat ion which 

means that  the pr ice wi l l  be higher because the di fferent 

speci f icat ion requires more steel ,  e t  cetera,  et  cetera.   And 

that  pushes the pr ice higher to a di fferent  locomot ive.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR LAHER :    And I  mean,  i f  you go through the memo, i t  

just i f ies the memo that  requested this to go through to CSR.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR LAHER :    I t  just i f ies why i t  goes to CSR and there is an 

explanat ion put t ing there in the memo.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You know the history about  Mitsui?  

MR LAHER :    Yes.   Wel l ,  I  cannot say I  know the history.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  did you know i t  at  the t ime? 

MR LAHER :    No,  I  d id not  know.. .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You have come to known of  i t?  

MR LAHER :    Recent ly,  ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A lr ight .   So you raise your concern.   20 

He tel ls you:   We have agreed to go to CSR.   Okay.   Now, 

just  let  me understand how these negot iat ions worked.   You 

say you made up the negot iat ing team and then the team 

reports into. . .  is  that  the sub-commit tee,  the Locomot ive 

Sub-Commit tee? 
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MR LAHER :    The team reports in to the chai rpersons.   The 

chairpersons report  into the sub-commit tee.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  the chairperson is  part  of  a  

team.  

MR LAHER :    Ja,  he is part  of  the team.  But  we reported 

into the chairpersons.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  but  I  mean,  he is par t  of  the 

meet ing.   Correct? 

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Right .   So there you are.   The co-10 

chairperson is here.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Is that  r ight? 

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    J iyane and Singh.  

MR LAHER :    Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   And do that . . .  the two of  them 

report  into the sub-commit tee? 

MR LAHER :    Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And that  sub-commit tee comprises the 20 

two of  them and Mr Molefe? 

MR LAHER :    No,  i t  comprises Mr Singh,  Mr Molefe and Mr 

Gama.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ah!   Okay.   So Mr Singh does not  te l l  

you that  the sub-commit tee has agreed to the R 44 mi l l ion?  
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He just  te l ls you that  Molefe has agreed to the R 44 mi l l ion.  

MR LAHER :    Yes,  probably.   I t  is part  of  mine. . .  i t  is  part  of  

the sub-commit tee meet ing that  they held.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr Laher,  he does not  te l l  you that  we 

as the sub-commit tee have agreed on R 44 mi l l ion.   He tel ls  

you – and you must understand.   Your evidence is important  

for other . . . [ intervenes]  

MR LAHER :    Ja,  sure.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .parts of  th is inquiry.  

MR LAHER :    Sure.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  is not  just  a matter of  exonerat ing 

yoursel f .  

MR LAHER :    Sure,  sure,  sure.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    He tel ls you that  Mr Molefe had 

agreed.  

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now that  must  have been st range to 

you? 

MR LAHER :    My understanding is,  they would have met  wi th 

the sub-commit tee.   Mr Molefe being the most  senior person 20 

in the sub-commit tee would be the one that  makes the f inal  

decision.   My understanding of  how a commit tee works.   

Because normal ly,  the most  senior  person in the commit tee 

would . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So you did not  th ink this was st range? 
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MR LAHER :    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So you thought. . .  you were surpr ised 

only by the pr ice? 

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r ight .   At  paragraph 30,  where you 

say:  

“During the negot iat ions I  ra ised concerns about the 

high pr ice.”  

 And then you go on to say at  31 that  you also ra ised 

these concerns wi th Mr Singh.   Correct? 10 

MR LAHER :    Ja 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And th is is where the account ing team 

qui te  correct ly ident i f ied that  CSR was using the wrong 

exchange rate.  

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Correct? 

MR LAHER :    Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now that  was your job.  

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    To ident i fy th ings l ike that .  20 

MR LAHER :    Yes,  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You came up wi th th is point .  

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And this is  when you say,  four l ines 

f rom the bot tom:  
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“His response was to advise me that  i t  is a  

negot iat ion process on f inal  process and in the 

context  of  negot ia t ions,  i t  was the f inal  overal l  pr ice 

that  is important . ”  

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Were you persuaded by that? 

MR LAHER :    May we read further? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Just . . .  I  am asking you Mr Laher.   

Please,  do not  get  ahead of  yoursel f .   I  wel l  aware of  the 

next  sentence and you know that  I  am going to take you 10 

there.    

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Could we concentrate on my quest ion,  

i f  you do not  mind? 

MR LAHER :    Sure.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You raise a l ine i tem with h im.  I t  is 

the accountant  in you coming out .  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  is why you are there.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

“His response was to advise me that  i t  is a  

negot iat ion process on f ina l  pr ice and on the context  

of  negot iat ion,  i t  is the overal l  f inal  pr ice that  is  

important . ”  
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MR LAHER :    I  th ink i t  is important  to read i t  wi th the next  

sentence.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Were you persuaded by that? 

MR LAHER :    No,  I  was persuaded with  what  he sa id as far 

as the next  sentence . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

“He explained that  the pr ic ing was acceptable in  

l ight  of  the r igorous negot iat ion process and the 

r isk.”  

 I t  is. . .  we are going to come to that  but  let  me deal  wi th 10 

this theory.   Because,  just  bearing in mind,  you say this in  

many other parts of  your aff idavi t .  

 That  is why I  do not  know why you are hesi tant .  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    In fact ,  I  th ink,  i t  appears three t imes,  

does i t  not? 

MR LAHER :    H’m. 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Where you say:   My pr inc iples. . .  we 

are worr ied of  the overal l  pr ice.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  is your  own test imony before this 

Commission.  

MR LAHER :    Sure,  ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  that  is wrong.   That  you need to 

interrogate the const i tuent  parts.  
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MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you want me to take you to those 

places? 

MR LAHER :    Yes,  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You know of  them.  

MR LAHER :    Ja,  ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So here,  when he told you i t  is al l  

about  the f inal  pr ice,  you knew that  in your mind not  to be 

r ight .   

MR LAHER :    Acceptable in terms of  the r isk,  the bidders 10 

were not  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am asking you.   Your own evidence 

before this Commission.   Is  i t  wrong,  as far as you are 

concerned,  to focus on the overal l  pr ice.   You must  look at  

the const i tuent  components.   In fact ,  you are cr i t ical  o f  Singh 

and Jiyane on that  basis,  correct? 

MR LAHER :    Ja,  ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Right .   So you were not  persuaded 

when he said look at  the overal l  pr ice,  correct? 

MR LAHER :    I  was persuaded with the next  sentence 20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  how could you have been 

persuaded when those passages in  your aff idavi t  say th is is  

the very mistake my pr inciples made? 

MR LAHER :    I t  was the mistake they made but  I  mean,  the 

explanat ion they provided were . . . [ intervenes]   
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then i t  was not  a mistake Mr Laher.   I  

mean, you cannot  have i t  both ways here.   

MR LAHER :    So the explanat ion that  was provided was 

reasonable at  that  point  in t ime. 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  in the next  sentence? 

MR LAHER :    In the next  sentence,  ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  you would accept  that  taken in 

isolat ion,  th is idea that  negot iat ions were al l  about  the f inal  

pr ice.   That  does not  record wi th  your  own view of  l i fe,  does 

i t?  10 

MR LAHER :    Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    As an accountant? 

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    In fact ,  i t  is nonsense,  is i t  not? 

MR LAHER :    I t  does not  accord wi th my view, ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   Okay.   But  why you were 

persuaded is.   He said he explained that  the pr ic ing was 

acceptable in  the l ight  of  the r igorous negot iat ion.   You have 

been involved in the negot iat ion process.  

MR LAHER :    Yes,  correct .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  mean, you knew that  r igour or  

otherwise.   And the r isk that  the bidders were prepared to 

accept .  

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So what?  They were st i l l  using the 
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wrong exchange rate.  

MR LAHER :    Right .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You could have potent ia l ly say 

R 2.4 mi l l ion.   Correct? 

MR LAHER :    Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  somehow,  you were just  

persuaded by this  answer.  

MR LAHER :    So,  I  mean, i t  is not  only about the exchange 

rate.   I t  is a lso about the rest  of  the negot iat ions.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja but  . . . [ intervenes]   10 

MR LAHER :    There is also about what the b idders were 

wi l l ing to accept .   So,  I  mean, when you do a negot iat ion for 

anything,  i t  is not  only about one element.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  but  you did not  test  th is wi th 

them.  You see that  is the problem.  I  mean, I  understand 

what you say.   But  you were in the negot iat ions.   You have 

not  descr ibed them as part icular ly r igorous.   Did you 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MR LAHER :    I t  was.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Why did you not  go to them and say:   20 

By the way,  you are using the wrong exchange rate.   We 

want you to  reduce your  pr ice about R 2.4 mi l l ion.   How do 

you know what they would have sa id? 

MR LAHER :    I  d id.   I  d id do that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You d id that? 
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MR LAHER :    I  d id that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  that  does not  seem to appear 

here.  

MR LAHER :    But  that  was part  of  the negot iat ion sessions.   

I  mean,  I  ra ised i t  d i rect ly wi th the bidders to say,  th is is  the 

wrong percentage(?).  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You do not  raise that  in your 

statement here.    

MR LAHER :    But  I  d id do i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You understand how that  might  be 10 

seen as a bi t  opportunist ic because so far we are test ing 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .you going to Mr Singh.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And Mr Singh giving you answers that  

pl icate you.   Now you say that  you actual ly raised th is issue 

wi th Mr Singh,  does not  agree wi th dur ing the negot ia t ions.  

MR LAHER :    Sorry,  say that  again? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Did you raise this issue dur ing 20 

negot iat ions?  Because remember,  Mr Singh does not  agree 

wi th th is.  

MR LAHER :    I  have raised i t  wi th the bidders dur ing 

negot iat ions.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see.   So there is  no issue then of  
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subordinat ion? 

MR LAHER :    But  I  ra ised i t  wi th h im as wel l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   My quest ion is.   Why do you not  

say you raised this in the negot iat ions? 

MR LAHER :    I  th ink I  ra ised in point  30 or I  ra ised my 

concerns of  the high costs di rect ly wi th the bidders.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   Perhaps I  have missed that .   I  

am talk ing real ly about  the R 2.4 mi l l ion.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And the foreign exchange f luctuat ions.  10 

MR LAHER :    That  is when I  am referr ing to when I  ta lk  

about  that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   Did you ra ise that? 

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   Now let  us go back to  

Mr Singh.   Are you ser iously suggest ing that  you were 

persuaded by his answer? 

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  you have accepted that  

negot iat ions about overal l  pr ice.   Were you persuaded that  20 

these negot iat ions are so r igorous and they have assumed 

so much r isk that  they wi l l  not  entertain us ing the correct  

foreign exchange? 

MR LAHER :    Wel l ,  the r isk re lates to other elements,  not  

. . . [ intervenes]  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    P lease,  just  answer my quest ion.   I  

mean, were you at  such a breaking point  that  you could not  

push this issue?  Is that  what you say? 

MR LAHER :    No,  I  do not  th ink I  said that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  then why d id not . . .  why was th is 

not  raised?  Why was the point  not  taken further? 

MR LAHER :    So i t  was.   As I  said,  these matters were 

debated wi th Mr S ingh as I  said ear l ier.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am asking you.   Why was this not  

pressed in the negot iat ions? 10 

MR LAHER :    I t  was pressed in the negot iat ions.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see.    

CHAIRPERSON :    When you say in paragraph 32:  

“ In l ight  of  the senior i ty,  expert ise,  experience and 

abi l i ty of  Mr Singh,  I  deferred to  his explanat ions 

and judgment on the issue that  I  had raised.”  

 That  sounds l ike you are saying,  even i f  you were not  

convinced that  he was r ight  wi th his responses or 

explanat ions,  you let  go because of  his senior i ty,  expert ise,  

experience and abi l i ty? 20 

MR LAHER :    Ja,  Chai r.   The explanat ions . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that  correct? 

MR LAHER :    The explanat ions provided was reasonable at  

that  point  in t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry? 
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MR LAHER :    The explanat ion provided was reasonable at  

that  point  in t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i f  the explanat ion was reasonable,  

why would you need to defer to him? 

MR LAHER :    I  suppose . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You mean.. .  do you mean,  i t  was 

reasonable but  not  correct? 

MR LAHER :    I t  was reasonable and i t  made sense at  that 

point  in t ime.  So accepted what he was tel l ing me.   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  then the senior i ty,  expert ise,  10 

experience and abi l i ty should not  come in,  should i t?  

MR LAHER :    Ja.   And you respected that  he had exper ience 

and you knew what he was talk ing about.   And he spoke wi th  

author i ty.   So you accepted i t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    My Myburgh.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   Explain to  me the 

concerns you have art iculated in your statements about  the 

chairpersons having,  as you put  i t ,  focussed incorrect ly on 

the overal l  pr ice instead of  the const i tuent  parts  because 

this real ly goes to that .   Explain that  cr i t ic ism to the 20 

Chairperson.  

MR LAHER :    Ja,  so Chai r.   As a f inance person,  obviously,  

you want to focus on the individual  parts but  dur ing the 

negot iat ions the chairpersons were much focussed on the 

overal l  pr ice and that  is just  the impression I  got  dur ing the 



22 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 289 
 

Page 43 of 89 
 

negot iat ions.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Why d id you consider that  to be 

wrong?  Why are you cr i t ical  of  the chairpersons? 

MR LAHER :    I  would have l iked for us to focus more on the 

individual  e lements that  made up the pr ice because then you 

could,  you know,  take things a b i t  further and you know 

going wi th a more wi th the bidders.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  you would have preferred that .  

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  would have been the correct  way 10 

to do i t ,  presumable,  f rom your point  of  v iew.  

MR LAHER :    From my point  of  v iew.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   So that  is. . .  you understand why 

I  quest ioned you in relat ion to  th is part icular  issue?  

Because this went to the very cr i t ic ism that  you have of  how 

the chai rpersons ran the negot iat ions.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  you get  th is answer f rom Mr Singh 

and you just  leave i t .    

MR LAHER :    Debate to that .   I  d id not  leave i t .   Debated i t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  you were not  persuaded because 

you bel ieved that  you needed to look at  each of  the 

components of  pr ice.   That  is your own case.   Do you want  

me to read that  to  you? 

MR LAHER :    Ja,  so the components are one sect ion.    
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja.  

MR LAHER :    The overal l  pr ice is another sect ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR LAHER :    And the r isk related to overal l  pr ice is another 

sect ion.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja.   So you say in your main 

statement:  

“The impression I  gained dur ing the negot iat ions 

was that  the chairperson’s negot iat ions tact ic was 

very much focussed on the overal l  pr ice. ”  10 

 Correct? 

MR LAHER :    Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

“The effect  of  th is was that  much of  these 

components was sel f -standing components of  the 

negot iat ions.   In the end,  i t  was the overal l  pr ice 

that  they focussed on. ”  

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And negot iat ing in that  way has i ts 

dangers,  does i t  not? 20 

MR LAHER :    Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Perhaps you could art iculate those 

dangers to the Chai rperson.  

MR LAHER :    I  suppose there should be more r igour in  

discussing the detai led elements that  make i t  up and in that  
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way you can. . .  you can get  to  the bot tom of  each of  the 

elements.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   Wel l ,  I  assumed what you were 

going to  is,  because you came in that  way ar t i f ic ia l ly 

increased pr ices.   Correct?  I f  you do not ,  as you correct ly  

put  i t ,  r igorously interrogate each of  these th ings,  you can 

hide R 5 mi l l ion here or R 10 mi l l ion there.   Correct? 

MR LAHER :    Possible.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  is the danger of  not  negot iat ing 

in a way that  you descr ibe.  10 

MR LAHER :    Ja.   Possible,  ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   That  is why i t  is very important  

to press these types of  issues,  is i t  not? 

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And Mr S ingh persuaded you on the 

basis that  you have explained.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Correct? 

MR LAHER :    Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see.   Now did you ever say to Mr 20 

Singh,  because this is your central  cr i t ic ism of  the 

chairpersons.    

 What you have not  al ready told the Chai rperson is that  

at  a certain point  in t ime, that  you met wi th the chai rpersons 

and said,  wi th al l  respect ,  the way that  you are negot iat ing is 
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wrong.   I t  does not  rest  wel l  wi th me.  We are not  

interrogat ing the const i tuent  components of  th is offer.    

 Now we know that  is what you bel ieved.  

MR LAHER :    H’m. 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Did you say that  to them? 

MR LAHER :    I  cannot recal l  saying that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What do you mean you cannot recal l  

Mr Laher?  Did. . .  I  mean, th is was your cent ral  problem that  

you had.   As I  understand i t .    

 You sat  there f rom an account ing perspect ive and you 10 

looked at  what was going on and you looked comfortable 

because they were not  interrogat ing the components.    

 Now, surely,  you would remember as to whether or not  

you took this leap of  addressing them on this issue. 

MR LAHER :    H’m, h’m.  I  cannot recal l  i f  I  said that  

. . . [ intervenes]    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  the I  assume you did not .  

MR LAHER :    Ja,  what I  probably did was t ry to ra ise i t  as 

much as I  could dur ing the negot iat ions.   So even though 

they were focussing on overal l  pr ice,  I  would have,  you 20 

know, but ted in to  say but  what about  th is,  what about that .   

Just  to make sure that  i t  is being addressed.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  is the most  you would have done.  

Why did you not  tackle this?  Because what you explain in  

your aff idavi t  is that  i t  seems to me that  a fundamental  
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d i ff icul ty wi th the manner in which these negot iat ions were 

being run.   Why did you not  tack le i t  head on? 

MR LAHER :    I  thought I  was doing a good enough job by 

just  t ry ing to raise the issues mysel f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  we know that . . .  I  mean, I  have 

made a l ist  of  your concerns.   There is s ix of  them.  

MR LAHER :    H’m. 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    None of  them involved this mater ia l  

issue.   I  mean, th is is central  to the whole in which you were 

conduct ing your  job.   I  mean,  you were there as an 10 

accountant .   That  was your job,  presumable.    

MR LAHER :    J.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    To interrogate the l ineout .  

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Right? 

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now the chai rpersons were not  

conduct ing the negot iat ions in that  way.   You have told the 

DCJ, the Chai rperson of  th is inqui ry that  i t  is wrong to do 

that  and that  that  potent ia l ly can lead to pr ice inf lat ion.   This 20 

is a big issue for you as a chartered accountant ,  correct? 

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yet ,  you do not  say,  wi th al l  respect ,  I  

must  put  my foot  down.  You do not  do that .  

MR LAHER :    Not  that  I  can recal l  but  I  mean I  can go back 
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and check what . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  Mr Laher,  you just  to ld the 

Chairperson at  the outset  that  you did not  want  to push 

things too far because you were scared of  insubord inat ion.   

Did you put  your foot  down, yes or no,  in relat ion to th is? 

MR LAHER :    No,  I  do not  th ink I  put  my foot  down.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No.   Okay so then,  why did you not?  

Because this is what you were doing there.   The whole 

modus operandi  on your evidence was wrong.   Why did you 

not  put  your foot  down? 10 

MR LAHER :    So as I  said,  I  would have raised the issues 

mysel f  d i rect ly to say that  we have got  to focus on 

escalat ions di rect ly wi th the bidders.   And I  would say 

escalat ion dur ing the negot iat ion sessions.    

 The same with al l  the di fferent  elements,  I  would have 

ra ised d irect ly wi th the bidders to  say we got  to focus on 

this,  we got  to focus on that  and see what responses we got  

f rom the bidders.   And that  is what I  d id.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A lr ight .   Now at  paragraph 32.   Here 

we are deal ing wi th the exchange f luctuat ions.   And i t  is  20 

important .   And you have pointed out  something to me which 

I  d id not  or might  have forgot ten.   Of  course,  we are deal ing 

here wi th you bel ieve that  the cost  was too high.  

MR LAHER :    Paragraph three,  two? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja,  30,  31,  32.  
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MR LAHER :    Ja.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you knew i t  was too high because 

you had done your own reasonabi l i ty calculat ion.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But . . .  So you are coming f rom that  

perspect ive,  real ly,  when you learn of  the R 44 mi l l ion.   As I  

understand,  i t  was just  a matter of  a short  t ime before you 

had done your own account ing sum. 

MR LAHER :    Right .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i t  would come to R 41 mi l l ion.  10 

MR LAHER :    Right .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So you were bet ter  placed than 

anyone to know that  th is actual ly was too high.  

MR LAHER :    Without  bui ld ing r isk into i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You know that? 

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   So at  32:  

“ In the l ight  of  senior i ty expert ise and exper ience an 20 

abi l i ty,  I  deferred to h is explanat ion.”  

 So that  explanat ion,  would you know, is wrong at  least  in 

part ,  fundamental ly.   That  negot iat ions are al l  about  the f inal  

pr ice.   You deferred to him.  

MR LAHER :    Ja,  that  is the explanat ion I  gave to the Chai r  
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a few minutes ago. 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You deferred to h im, te l l ing you that  

negot iat ions are al l  about  the f inal  pr ice because of  his 

expert ise,  experience and abi l i ty.  

MR LAHER :    And because he said that  there is r isk involved 

and there is. . .  you have to pay a pr ice for the r isk.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   But  look,  Mr Laher.   I  do not  

want to  be unchari table to you but  you also had ski l ls.   You 

also had senior i ty,  experience,  expert ise and abi l i ty.   

Correct?  And al l  those things took you to say to him that  the 10 

pr ice is too high.  

MR LAHER :    [No audible reply]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  is  why I  am struggl ing to 

understand and I  th ink the Chai rperson has touched on i t  

and I  am not  going to belabour i t  but  i t  is  not  a case where 

this is not  your f ie ld.    

 This is your f ie ld .   You had done the account ing.   You 

had got  to  R 41 mi l l ion.   You were no real ly surpr ised that  Mr 

Molefe had agreed to R 44 mi l l ion.    

 But  you land up,  on the basis of  th is answer,  just  20 

deferr ing to him.  

MR LAHER :    With r igorous debate that  happened before 

that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr Laher,  there is no reference here 

you r igorous debate.   Please.   You draf t . . .  I  mean, th is is an 
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important  statement that  has been draf ted.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You do not  even talk about ,  let  a lone 

r igorous,  you say nothing about debate.    

MR LAHER :    So that  is why I  am saying now that  is what  

happened.  To clar i fy.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You are now saying here you had a 

r igorous debate wi th Mr Singh.  

MR LAHER :    I t  was a debate . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    When you started out  your evidence 10 

this morning,  the record wi l l  show that  you adopted the 

posi t ion that  you actual ly did not  want to have a r igorous 

debate wi th Mr Singh because you th ink you might  

insubordinate yoursel f .    

MR LAHER :    At  the back of  your mind,  but  I  mean 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So where are we then? 

MR LAHER :    So the debate was held.   I  mean . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A r igorous debate was held despi te no 

reference being made here.  20 

MR LAHER :    Let  me stop you wi th the word r igorous but  the 

debate was out .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Debate was. . .  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You did not  have concerns about  
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insubordinat ion? 

MR LAHER :    At  the back of  your mind,  as I  have said,  i t  is  

always there.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So tel l  us then.   Let  us explain the 

debate.   Let  us go through i t .    

MR LAHER :    So go though i t  wi th Mr S ing.   So approach 

him and say that  my bel ieve is that  my calculat ion is a 

certain number and this is a  number.   They are using the 

wrong numbers in  the ca lcu lat ion.   And then asking why are 

the pr ices higher.   Why would i t  be to a higher number?   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR LAHER :    And his explanat ion would have been, as I  said 

there,  he bel ieved i t  was a r igorous negot iat ion process.   

And i t  was a r igorous negot iat ion process where i t  was up 

and down over a per iod.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Carry on.  

MR LAHER :    And based there upon, the bidders were wi l l ing 

to only. . .  and we were not  there when the f inal  pr ice. . .  we 

only agreed to that  because there was r isk involved.    

 And they were only wi l l ing to accept  that  pr ice because 20 

there was r isk involved and because of  that  r isk,  they wanted 

a higher pr ice.    

 And that  was the addi t ional  e lement of  r isk that  pushed 

i t  up to R 44 mi l l ion . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you descr ibed that  as a debate? 
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MR LAHER :    Wel l ,  he would have come back to me and I  

mean, I  would have said . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You see,  Mr Laher.   Even on your  own 

vers ion,  you raised a concern and he gave the answer in 

these two l ines and you were placated.   I  mean, you have 

basical ly repeated what you have in your  statement.  

Correct? 

MR LAHER :    Effect ively,  I  would have said:   Does that . . .  

You know, I  would have said:   Okay but  in my view i t  is 

. . . [ intervenes]   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see.   Wel l ,  let  us carry on.   Now 

what happens is that  you become in part  the author of  what  

we can refer to as the Singh memorandum.  Correct? 

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now you,  i f  I  recal l  your evidence 

correct ly,  you were very surpr ised. . .  [voice t rai ls o f f ]   You 

were surpr ised that  Mr Singh choice you to perform this task.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Is that  r ight? 

MR LAHER :    Ja.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And presumable must  have t rusted 

you.  

MR LAHER :    [No audible reply]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Correct? 

MR LAHER :    Possible,  ja.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Were there lots of  other people that  

he could have asked.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  he choice you.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Right? 

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now, I  understand ent i rely the edi ts  

that  were made.   I  have looked careful ly at  the notes at  

Annexure YL15.  But  I  mean, there seems to be to be 10 

substant ia l  parts of  that  memorandum that  you would have 

authored yoursel f .    

MR LAHER :    What you see in the notes are only a few 

pages.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja.   Sorry,  can you just  answer my 

quest ion?  Are there substant ia l  parts of  the memorandum 

that  you have authored yoursel f?  

MR LAHER :    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r ight .   So you given a draf t  and you 

work i t  up and key then amends(?).  20 

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What we need to know which is  

important  is,  do you take ownership then of  that  

memorandum?  Do you accept  that  you were ul t imately the 

author wi th the input  of  Mr Singh? 
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MR LAHER :    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay what are you saying?  That  you 

performed simply a secretar ia l  funct ion? 

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  then why . . . [ intervenes]   

MR LAHER :    And chased up whatever informat ion he wanted 

me to chase up.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   Yes but  are you saying,  you 

authored none of  that  memorandum? 

MR LAHER :    I  would have captured h is wording 10 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So you performed – and i t  is 

important .   We just  need to know.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You performed simply a secretar ia l  

funct ion? 

MR LAHER :    Ja.   Except  for Table 1 where he explained to  

me how to put  the tab le . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   We are going to come to Table 1.    

MR LAHER :    Ja.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So apart  f rom – because of  course,  

Table 1 is the cr i t ical  th ing,  is i t  not? 

MR LAHER :    Ja,  i t  is a record of  the . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Right .  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  is real ly what I  wanted to get  at .  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Table 1 is cr i t ical .  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    As for the rest ,  you were playing the 

ro le of  a secretary.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   Now you knew that  what you. . .  

what  Mr Singh was t ry ing to do,  was to provide real ly an 

expo facto explanat ion for the increase to R 44 mi l l ion per 10 

locomot ive.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Correct? 

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And what is important  is that  that  

memorandum took a substant ia l  amount of  t ime to draf t ,  d id 

i t  not?  Or to f inal ise.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    In  fact ,  i t  seems,  i t  is c loser  to two 

months and one month.   Would you agree? 20 

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So there is. . .  the picture that  you paint  

is that  there is a backwards and forwarding between you and 

Mr Singh for up to  two months.    

MR LAHER :    Possible,  ja.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    There is a  gather ing of  informat ion.   

There is an exercise of  the mind in relat ion to Table A.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So I  take i t  then,  the Chai rperson can 

accept  that  Mr Molefe and the sub-commit tee did not  have 

that  informat ion on tab at  the t ime that  the R 44 mi l l ion was 

agreed to?  They did not  have on tab,  d id they? 

MR LAHER :    I  do not  know what the sub . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  you do know.  Because i f  they had 

on tab,  then you would have been given the informat ion and 10 

you could have just  draf ted Table A and the memorandum 

could have been immediately.   Correct? 

MR LAHER :    You are talk ing about the informat ion in the 

table? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR LAHER :    Wel l ,  they would have had a quote because 

that  informat ion came f rom the quote.   So they would have 

had i t  wi th them.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   But  the point  is that  i t  was an 

expo facto just i f icat ion.   Correct? 20 

MR LAHER :    I t  was the calculat ion or a reconci l iat ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  the point  is.   You now have to 

just i fy an explain a decision that  had already been made.   

That  is perhaps a more accurate way of  put t ing i t ,  correct? 

MR LAHER :    That  was the object ive and the memo was to 
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request  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR LAHER :    . . .permission to . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You accept  that  I  say? 

MR LAHER :    [No audible reply]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You were t ry ing to just i fy the 

increased to 44 which had al ready been agreed.  

MR LAHER :    I  was not  just i fy ing anything.   Mr Singh was 

preparing the memo.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  but  you knew that  was Mr Singh 10 

was doing.  

MR LAHER :    That  is what Mr Singh was doing.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Right .   And did that  not  make you. . .  do 

you not  feel  uneasy about being involved in th is process?  I  

mean, al ready you were concerned about the pr ice.    

MR LAHER :    [No audible reply]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Were you not  concerned about  

involvement wi th th is memorandum? 

MR LAHER :    I  do not  th ink so.   I  mean, where I  d id not  know 

what was happening in the memo,  he would have. . .  he got  20 

inputs and he would provide inst ruct ion to the other sect ions 

of  the memo which needed to come from other areas.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  is not  my quest ion.   I  mean, you 

yoursel f  say you are surpr ised that  he choice you.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Were you not  a l i t t le bi t  wary about  

th is task? 

MR LAHER :    Look,  obviously I  d id not  work in that  

department.   I  d id  not  work for him.   I  was work ing at  Fre ight  

Rai l .   I  was working in another off ice in Park Town. They 

were working in Car l ton Centre.    

 I  got  cal led to come and do these edi ts and to chase 

people up to  get  informat ion for the memo.   I  suppose i t  was 

just . . .  i t  fe l t  l ike i t  was just  a job that  I  needed to do based 

on the instruct ion of  my superior.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Did you feel . . .  and again Mr Laher,  

you have done everything but  answer my quest ion.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Were you not  wary about  engaging in  

th is task?  You do not  even tel l  us about  the Carl ton Centre,  

to answer that  quest ion.  

MR LAHER :    No.   I  do not  recal l  being wary.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A lr ight .   Wel l ,  then that  is the answer.    

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You were not  wary.  20 

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You were surpr ised though that  he 

choice you.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   Then the memorandum is 
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produced.  Let  us then go to. . .  i t  is Table 1.   I  am sorry.   I  am 

wrong when I  referred you to A,  Table 1 i s  a t  553,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  i s  how one gets  to  the  44  

mi l l ion .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And fo r  example  what  you wou ld  f ind  

a t  A ,  tha t  i s  the  co lumn next  to  the  rand.  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  dea ls  w i th  the  exchange ra te .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And we know these are  the  

const i tuent  par ts  tha t  caused the  increase,  r igh t?  

MR LAHER:    R igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you say tha t  in  the  process o f  

pu t t ing  together  the  memorandum and tab le  1  tha t  Mr  

S ingh asked you to  do  a  so -ca l led  wa lk  fo rward .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now i f  I  cou ld  ask  you p lease to  go 20 

page 510 and paragraph 36,  the  four th  l ine :  

“Mr  S ingh to ld  me to  prepare  a  wa lk  fo rward  

ca l cu la t ion  f rom the  bus iness case  pr ice  to  the  f ina l  

cont rac ted  p r ice . ”  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    “The wa lk  fo rward  wou ld  en ta i l   

tak ing  the  pr ice  as  re f lec ted  in  the  bus iness case o f  

34  m i l l ion  and add ing  or  subt rac t ing  any e lements  

tha t  impact  the  pr ice  to  tha t  p r ice  in  o rder  to  end up  

a t  the  f ina l  cont rac ted  p r ice . ”  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    tha t  i s  what  you had to  do .  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You had to  go  f rom 34 mi l l ion  to  44  

mi l l ion .  10 

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You had to  ensure  tha t .  

MR LAHER:    Those were  the  two parameters ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.   But  because,  o f  cou rse ,  Mr  

Mole fe  had a l ready agreed on tha t .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  m igh t  have been two  months  

be fore .  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s  wha t  you had to  do .   You had 20 

to  ba lance the  books.  

MR LAHER:    Tha t  was the  parameters ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  p rec i se ly.   So le t  us  then go;  

and have a  look a t  what  Mr  Ca l la rd  had to  say.   You have 

cons idered h i s  t ransc r ip t ,  I  have p rov ided you w i th  there .  
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MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You know tha t  he  has g iven ev idence 

a l ready in  re la t ion  to  your  Ru le  3 .4  s ta tement  and Mr  

Ca l la rd ’s  t ranscr ip t  o r  t ranscr ip t  o f  h is  ev idence you f ind  –  

i f  you  go to  page 791 o f  bund le  4B.   You f ind  i t  d i rec t l y  

a f te r  tha t ,  i t  s ta r ts  a t  791.1 .   A re  you there?  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    There  is  j us t  one or  two passages 

tha t  I  want  to  take  you to .   Le t  us  go  p lease to  page  

791.30.   I  want  to  take  you jus t  to  th ree  par t s  and he is  10 

dea l ing  he re  w i th  tab le  1 .   Mr  Ca l la rd  says a t  l ine  18 :  

“There  is  no th ing  wh ich  adds to  the  tab le  or  enab les  

a  fu r ther  de te rminat ion  o f  the  tab le  in  a  

de termin is t i c  manner  o f  a  wa lk  fo rward  wh ich  I  was  

ment ion ing .   None o f  those ,  tha t  da ta  o r  

methodo logy fo r  a  ca lcu la t ion  o f  tha t  wa lk  fo rward  

is  p rov ided.   I t  is  covered as  I ,  in  my read ing  o f  

th is ,  under  the  gu idance o f  Mr  S ingh who p rov ided 

those e lements  bu t  i t  does not  e luc ida te  o r  add to  

an  unders tand ing  o f  how the  f ina l  44  m i l l ion  was 20 

der i ved a t  o ther  than these f igures .   We have no  

unders tand ing  how these f igures  were  der i ved a t  in  

a  de termin is t i c  o r  t raceab le  manner. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR LAHER:    So  yes,  we do know how the  f igures  were  
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a r r i ved a t .   I  mean,  i f  you  go to  tab le  1  the  e lements  are  

exp la ined in  te rms o f  the  fo re ign  exchange was ar r i ved a t ,  

wou ld  be  chang ing  the  EN ra te  and tha t  was a  10 .7% 

increase in  EN ra te ,  so  tha t  i s  10 .7  increase  f rom the  

bus iness case to  the  po in t  in  t ime when the  cont rac t  was  

s igned.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR LAHER:    Same wou ld  be  fo r  the  esca la t ion .   I t  wou ld  

be  the  esca la t ion  re la t ing  to  ind ices over  tha t  po in t  in  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  a l l  o f  those were  cont rovers ia l  10 

dec is ions made dur ing  the  course  o f  negot ia t ion .  

MR LAHER:    Why do you say cont rovers ia l?    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  I  mean,  we have touched on  

the  exchange ra te  a l ready.  

MR LAHER:    Ja  bu t  th is  i s  –  these exchange ra tes  are  a  

g iven.   So,  I  mean,  you have i t  in  the  bus iness case and 

you have the  exchange ra te  a t  the  da te  o f  [ inaud ib le  –  

speak ing  s imul taneous ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you do  not  agree w i th  what  Mr  

Ca l la rd  sa id?  20 

MR LAHER:    I  d isagree.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then le t  us  have a  l ook a t  page 

791.32 a t  parag raph or  l ine  12 .  

“ I  have not  come across tha t  methodo logy i n  the  

past . ”  
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He is  ta lk ing  about  the  wa lk  fo rward .    

“ I t  i s  most  unusua l ,  h igh ly  unusua l .   In  fac t  I  wou ld  

go  so  fa r  as  to  say i r regu la r  because we are  now 

t ry ing  to  jus t i f y  a  p r ice  wh ich  has been g iven as  he  

ment ioned in  h i s  s ta tement  ear l ie r,  tha t  he  was  

g iven the  pr i ce .   He is  now t ry ing  to  jus t i f y  the  pr ice  

as  in  a  wa lk  fo rward . ”  

I  th ink  you have accepted tha t  you r  wa lk  fo rward  had to  ge t  

you f rom 34 to  44 .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  he i s  say ing  we l l ,  you  a re  jus t  

s imp ly  t ry ing  to  jus t i f y,  you knew where  you had to  go  to .  

MR LAHER:    Wel l ,  i t  i s  no t  a  jus t i f i ca t ion ,  i t  i s  a  

ca l cu la t ion  and i t  i s  s tandard  way o f  do ing  a  wa lk  fo rward .   

So i t  i s  no t  someth ing  tha t  i s  new,  i t  i s  s tandard  f inanc ia l  

way o f  do ing  th ings.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  the  po in t  i s  i t  was be ing  done ex 

post  fac to ,  you  had to  ge t  to  44 .  

MR LAHER:    And you wou ld  normal ly  do  tha t  a lways.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  see.   Then i f  we go p lease  to  page 20 

791.35.   A t  21  Mr  Ca l la rd  says:  

“Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  you have  summar ised i t  

beaut i fu l l y,  a  wa lk  fo rward  wou ld  be  pr io r  to  the  

event  to  de termine the  pr i ce .   Post  event  wou ld  be  

a  wa lk  backwards to  jus t i f y.   I  th ink  you have  
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summar ised i t  beaut i fu l l y. ”  

In  o ther  words,  what  he  was say ing  is  rea l l y  you are  go ing  

backwards to  jus t i f y  a  p r ice .   Do you want  to  comment  on  

tha t?  

MR LAHER:    Mr  Ca l la rd  i s  no t  a  f inanc ia l  exper t ,  so  I  

mean we do wa lk  fo rwards in  th i s  way,  we ca l l  i t  a  wa lk  

fo rward ,  a t  the  end o f  the  day i t  i s  semant ics ,  wa lk  

fo rward ,  wa lk  backwards and I  exp la ined yesterday how a  

wa lk  fo rward  is  done and tha t  i s  a  s tandard  way you do a  

wa lk  fo rward .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   Then le t  us  p lease go back  

to  your  s ta tement .   And I  am go ing  to  dea l  w i th  the  next  

th ing  tha t  Mr  Ca l l a rd  dea ls  w i th  and tha t  i s  the  fo rex  issue.  

MR LAHER:    A l r igh t ,  page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And th is  you dea l  w i th  a t  page 510 in  

parag raph 36,  i t  is  qu i te  a  lengthy  parag raph,  as  you know.   

I  th ink  i t  i s  tha t  par t  o f  the  paragraph tha t  you f ind  a t  page 

511.   A re  you the re?  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you say a t  the  top :  20 

“S ingh exp la ined  tha t  the  assumpt ions used in  the  

bus iness case was the  rand/yen ra te  and tha t  the  

base p r ice  in  the  bus iness case was based upon a  

pr ice  ob ta ined f rom Mi tsu i .   S ingh exp la ined tha t  

the  bus iness case was based in  yen. ”  
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And so  i t  goes on .  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A few l ines  down you say:  

“ I  po in ted  out  tha t  there  wou ld  be  more  than one  

cur rency invo lved . ”  

What  d id  you mean by  tha t?   What  were  the  o the r  

cur renc ies?  

MR LAHER:    So  tha t  wou ld  be  l i ke  the  US do l la r  ra te  

example .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  when you say there  were  o ther  10 

cur renc ies  invo l ved,  what  d id  you mean?  Were  you  say ing  

we l l ,  I  sa id  to  h im look,  we shou ld  be  us ing  the  US do l la r?  

MR LAHER:    No,  no ,  no ,  no .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  d id  you say?  

MR LAHER:    I  am say ing  cou ld  have been or  cou ld  o ther  

cur renc ies  invo l ved and he is  say ing  the  bus iness case is  

based in  yen.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  i s  th is  an  –  why d id  you  not  say  20 

to  why are  we not  us ing  the  US do l la r?  

MR LAHER:    I  cannot  –  I  mean,  the  bus iness case was  

based in  yen,  i t  is  fa i t  accompl i  [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry,  can you jus t  answer  my  

quest ion?  D id  you say to  h im why are  we not  us ing  the  US 
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do l la r?  

MR LAHER:    The  cont rac t  was meant  to  be  done in  rands.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay.  

MR LAHER:    So –  and tha t  i s  what  was f ina l l y  agreed 

upon,  in  rands.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t .   So when you say I  po in ted  

out  tha t  there  wou ld  be  o ther  –  sor ry,  more  than one  

cur rency invo lved  d id  you mean rand and someth ing  e lse?  

Or  d id  you mean. . .?  

MR LAHER:    So  the  in i t ia l  p r i ce ,  when I  was do ing  my  10 

ca l cu la t ion ,  my reasonab i l i t y  was based on the  CSR pr ice  

wh ich  wou ld  have had a  do l la r  e lement  and you w i l l  see  i t  

in  my ca lcu la t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  I  saw i t .  

MR LAHER:    And tha t  i s  why I  asked tha t  quest ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  when you d id  your  re -s tab i l i t y  

ca l cu la t ion  tha t  i s  where  you used US do l la r.  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  you ra ise  w i th  Mr  S ingh the  

prospect  o f  ra the r  us ing  a  US do l la r  in  th is  contex t  o r  no t?  20 

MR LAHER:    No,  I  d id  no t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then he  says:  

“Wel l ,  the  bus iness case is  based  on yen so  tha t  i s  

what  we are  go ing  to  use. ”  

And you accepted .  
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MR LAHER:    Tha t  i s  no t  unreasonab le .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    When you d id  your  re -s tab i l i t y  

ca l cu la t ion  why d id  you use US do l la r  and not  yen?  

MR LAHER:    Because the  pr i ce  o f  the  20E was based in  

US do l la r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  CSR is  a  Ch inese company?  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Not  a  Japanese company.  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And the i r  p r ices  are  based  on US 10 

do l la r,  as  I  unders tand,  f rom what  you say.   

MR LAHER:    Yes .   Ja ,  and a  few o ther  cur renc ies .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes bu t  in  th is  ins tance we were  

us ing  the  US do l la r.  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    In  your  m ind.  

MR LAHER:    US Do l la r  as  we l l  as  rand,  por t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  tha t  I . . .   So  us ing  the  US – 

sor ry,  us ing  the  yen as  the  rand/yen ra te  we know tha t  tha t  

came a t  someth ing  o f  a  p r i ce .   I  th ink  we have a l ready 20 

looked a t  tab le  1 .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    How much was i t?  

MR LAHER:    10 .7% increase.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And tha t  t rans la ted  in to  how much in  
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rand?  

MR LAHER:    I  w i l l  go  to  tab le  1  to  see what  i t  i s .   On what  

page is  tab le  1?   R3.6  m i l l ion .   I  th ink  3 .6  [ ind is t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry?  

MR LAHER:    R3.6  m i l l ion  rounded .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    3 .6  m i l l i on  per  locomot ive?  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  was qu i te  a  la rge  par t  o f  the  

increase f rom 34 to  44 .  10 

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  you ever  do  a  ca l cu la t i on  as  to  

what  the  d i f fe rence wou ld  have  been i f  you used the  

rand/US do l la r  ra te?  

MR LAHER:    I  d id  no t  do  tha t  ca lcu la t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you know whether  i t  wou ld  have 

been o f fhand more  or  less?  

MR LAHER:    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   So le t  us  jus t  then go to  Mr  

Ca l la rd  aga in  p lease and I  w i l l  ask  you to  go  to  page 20 

791.37.   Th is  i s  where  he  dea ls  w i th  th is  i ssue and perhaps  

I  can take  you fo rward  to  page 44.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say 791 po in t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    791.44,  Mr  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    44 .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  l ine  13 .   Mr  Ca l la rd  says:  

“But  what  I  fa i l  to  unders tand is  th is  i s  I  have a  

pr ice  fo r  a  locomot ive ,  I  am now buy ing  a  do l la r -

based locomot ive  in to  the  fu tu re ,  why shou ld  I  now 

be us ing  yen in to  the  fu tu re  in  jus t i f i ca t ion  o r  

de termin ing  a  do l la r -based locomot ive?  I  s t i l l  do  

no t  unders tand tha t  anomaly.   I  s t i l l  have noth ing  in  

here  to  address tha t  anomaly  o ther  than the  f i rs t  

l i ne . ”  

Do you want  to  address tha t?  10 

MR LAHER:    The s tandard  way  o f  do ing  a  wa lk  fo rward  i s  

to ,  as  I  exp la ined  yeste rday,  was to  work  on  what  you were  

g iven.   So you were  g i ven the  rand/yen ra te ,  wh ich  was  

inc luded in  the  bus iness case wh ich  is  fa i t  accomp l i ,  as  I  

sa id  in  my s ta tement  yesterday as  we l l .   I  was not  invo lved 

in  the  bus iness case,  so  I  cannot  exp la in  why the  bus iness 

case was based  in  yen but  f rom a  f inanc ia l  p r inc ip le  

perspect ive  you s ta r t  w i th  what  you are  g iven and the  

rand/yen ra te  was what  was g i ven and tha t  i s  why you used  

the  rand/yen ra te .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  there  was no reason why you  

cou ld  no t  use  the  rand/do l la r  ra te  i f  you  chose to .  

MR LAHER:    I t  wou ld  jus t  compl ica te  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  you cou ld .  

MR LAHER:    You  cou ld ,  ja ,  bu t  i t  expose the  ca lcu la t ion  to  
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m isca lcu la t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  you cou ld  do  the  ca lcu la t ion .  

MR LAHER:    You  cou ld  do  the  ca lcu la t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s  why they had smar t  peop le  

l i ke  you there .  

MR LAHER:    Ja ,  you cou ld  do  the  ca l cu la t ions bu t  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes and then you cou ld  t race  i t  in to  

the  fu tu re  us ing  the  cor rec t  cur rency.  

MR LAHER:    No t  necessar i l y,  I  mean,  we cannot  say  i t  i s  10 

the  co r rec t  cur rency.   As  I  say,  when you do a  wa lk  fo rward  

you work  w i th  what  was g iven.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR LAHER:    So  i t  i s  more  co r rec t  to  use what  you were  

g iven ra the r  than  to  make assumpt ions and use someth ing  

tha t  you a re  no t  g iven.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ye t  when you d id  your  ca lcu la t ions  

you used the  do l l a r.  

MR LAHER:    Tha t  i s  a  separa te  ca lcu la t ion  comple te ly.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    But  your  answer  i s  yes .  20 

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:     A l r igh t .   Then the  next  page 791.45,  

l ine  19 .  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  he  says is  …[ in te rvenes]  
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MR LAHER:    Sor ry,  I  do  no t  have l ines  in  my… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    L ine  19 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The number  on  the  marg ins .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    On the  le f t  hand s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON:    When i t  says  l ine  19 ,  there  i s  10 ,  20 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You do have them,  I  can see them 

f rom here ,  Mr  …[ in tervenes]  

MR LAHER:    I  see  10 and 20 –  oh ,  you mean. . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    20 ,  so  i t  i s  the  l ine  above.  10 

“Second ly,  in  tha t  exp lanat ion  I  can p ick  up  f rom Mr  

Laher ’s  s ta tement  fo r  the  cont inued use o f  the  yen  

was tha t  Mr  S ingh exp la ined the  assumpt ion  and I  

take  tha t  as  gu idance f rom Mr  S ingh. ”  

So you took gu idance f rom h im there .  

MR LAHER:    Ja  bu t  i t  i s  a  f inanc ia l  p r inc ip le  wh ich  I  agree 

w i th .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Le t  us  then dea l  w i th  the  advanced 

payments  wh ich  is  the  next  th ing  tha t  Mr  Ca l la rd  dea ls  

w i th .   Now Mr  Ca l la rd  says tha t  he  was shocked when he  20 

came to  learn  o f  amongst  o thers  a  30% advanced 

guaranteed payment  to  CSR.   Were  you shocked when you 

came to  learn  o f  tha t?  

MR LAHER:    I  do  no t  know i f  I  was shocked.   I  do  no t  

th ink  I  was shocked.  



22 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 289 
 

Page 73 of 89 
 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  le t  me jus t  take  you  to  the  

ex ten t  o f  i t  and we can break fo r  tea .   Cou ld  you p lease go 

to  the  t ransc r ip t  791.57.   A t  the  foo t  o f  the  page .57 ,  he  

says when he came to  learn  o f  th is  he  then sent  an  SMS to 

f inance peop le .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  you get  th is  SMS? 

MR LAHER:    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And the  SMS read –  over  the  page:  

“My g iddy ha t ,  we are  shocked  a t  these f igures .   10 

These guys a re  cowboys,  what  a re  they p lay ing  a t?”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You were  no t  shocked,  were  you  

surpr i sed?  

MR LAHER:    That  was the  o f fe r  tha t  was put  on  the  tab le  

[ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  I  am ask ing  you were  you 

surpr i sed tha t  i t  was ag reed to?  

MR LAHER:    No.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Cha i rpe rson,  cou ld  we break fo r  

tea?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  take  the  tea  ad journment ,  we w i l l  

resume a t  ha l f  past  e leven.   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 
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INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Mr  Laher,  

we are  dea l ing  w i th  the  advance  payments .   Cou ld  I  ask  

you p lease to  go  to  page 501 o f  bund le  4B?  A t  pa rag raph 

40 you say tha t  you were  no t  invo lved in  the  management  

o f  Transnet ’s  cash or  fund ing ,  512.  

MR LAHER:    Sor ry,  512?   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i t  says :  

“Dur ing  the  1  064 and 100 locomot ive  t ransact ion  10 

Mr  S ingh to ld  the  negot ia t ing  team tha t  Transne t  

had the  fund ing  ava i lab le  and tha t  the  advanced 

payments  were  a f fo rdab le . ”  

I  jus t  wanted to  c la r i f y,  I  take  i t  tha t  the  issue o f  advanced 

payments ,  was tha t  par t  and parce l  o f  the  negot ia t ions  o r  

i s  i t  someth ing  tha t  Mr  S ingh to ld  you about  ou ts ide  o f  

tha t?  

MR LAHER:    I t  is  pa r ty,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you sa t  there  and the re  was a  

negot ia t ion  around these advanced  payments?  20 

MR LAHER:    Ja ,  when b idders  p rov ide  the i r  p r i c ing  they  

prov ide  a  payment  p ro f i le  as  we l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  cou ld  I  take  you p lease to  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  what  was tha t  answer?  
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MR LAHER:    When b idders  prov ide  pr ic ing  they prov ide  a  

payment  p ro f i le  as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was pa r t  o f  the  negot ia t ions?  

MR LAHER:    I t  was pa r t  o f  the  submiss ion  by  the  b idders  

per  negot ia t ions ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now I  want  to  take  you to  Mr  

Ca l la rd ’s  s ta tement  tha t  was a t tached to  the  3 .3  no t ice ,  

tha t  i s  r igh t  a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  f i le  and cou ld  I  ask  you  

p lease to  tu rn  to  page 503.37.   Perhaps we can s tar t  a t  10 

503.38.   Do you  see a t  147 the re  is  a  tab le ,  the  tab le  

be low is  compi led  f rom annexure  17  and i f  you look a t  the  

co lumn headed CSR you w i l l  see :  

“Tota l  advance payment ,  30%”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then a t  148 :  

“F rom the  above tab le  the  advance payments  be fore  

a  locomot ive  is  de l i vered fo r  a l l  b idders  increased 

f rom the i r  in i t ia l  b ids .   Bombad ier  was s l igh t ly  20 

increased f rom a  h igh  base and CSR,  hav ing  the  

h ighest  inc rease,  fo l lowed by  CNR and GE. ”  

Now in  o rde r  to  make sense o f  tha t  one must  go  the  tab le  

a t  144 a t  page 503.37.   Do you see  tha t?  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  there  we know tha t  CSR was 

b idder  2  and there  i t  re f lec ts :  

“To ta l  payments  be fore  acceptance fo r  b idder  2 ,  the  

in i t ia l  p roposa l  was 1 .62%.”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And tha t  then inc reased,  d id  i t  no t?  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    To  a  whopp ing  30%.   

MR LAHER:    Yes .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And a t  149 Mr  Ca l la rd  says:  

“The increase begs the  quest ion  as  to  how the  f ina l  

negot ia t ions  were  conducted. ”  

Perhaps i f  you  can jus t  exp la in  to  the  Cha i rpe rson,  how 

does one get  f rom 1 .62% to  30%?   Bear ing  in  m ind tha t  

these are  peop le  –  oh ,  yes ,  so  car ry  on?  

MR LAHER:    As  par t  o f  the  negot ia t ion  p rocess ,  Cha i r,  

you s ta r ted  o f f  a t  a  po in t  obv ious l y  and then b idders  wou ld  

submi t  p roposa ls  over  a  po in t  o f  t ime.   When we s tar ted  

the  negot ia t ions  remember  there  were  many issues we had  20 

to  dea l  w i th .   Those issues re la ted  to  the  reduct ion  o f  the  

ba tch  inc rease in  cost  per  esca la t ion ,  the  fo rex  por t ion ,  the  

use o f  TE,  e tce tera .   That  p r ic ing  was not  pa r t  o f  the  

eva lua t ion  and was on ly  p rov ided dur ing  the  negot ia t ion  

phase,  cor rec t l y  o r  incor rec t l y.  
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 Now when they submi t ted  the i r  p roposa ls  as  pa r t  o f  

the  negot ia t ion  phase,  they wou ld  have submi t ted  proposa l  

w i th  rev i sed pr ic ing  now fo r  inc lus ion  o f  those e lements  as  

we l l  as  payment  te rms re la ted  to  those proposa ls  over  a  

per iod  o f  t ime and as  par t  o f  the  negot ia t ion  process.   They  

wou ld  negot ia ted  d i f fe ren t  payment  te rms w i th  d i f fe ren t  

payment  te rms w i th  d i f fe ren t  p r ices ,  so  i t  was a  pa r t  o f  a  

negot ia t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  I  th ink  my quest ion  is ,  how does  

one get  to  a  s i tua t ion  where  the  advanced payment  was 10 

twenty  t imes more  than what  they in i t ia l l y  asked fo r?  

MR LAHER:    My unders tand ing  is  the  locomot ives  were  

meant  to  be  de l i vered over  a  shor te r  pe r iod  o f  t ime and the 

in i t ia l  eva lua t ion  was much longer  per iod  o f  t ime.   So 

because i t  was a  shor te r  pe r iod  o f  t ime they needed  h igher  

advanced payment  to  se t  up  the  in f ras t ruc ture .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Twenty  t imes more?  

MR LAHER:    Tha t  i s  the  bas is  upon wh ich  they prov ided.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you know tha t  tha t  – what  was  

the  cost  then to  Transnet?   I t  was then pa id  ou t ,  was i t  20 

some R7 b i l l i on  o r  someth ing?  You wou ld  know.  

MR LAHER:    To ta l  advance payments  fo r  a l l  these – a l l  

the  d i f fe ren t  b idders  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    7  b i l l i on .  

MR LAHER:    I  cannot  remember  the  exact  number  bu t  
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poss ib ly  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wi thout  anyth ing  be ing  de l i vered on  

a  cont rac t?  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now Mr  Ca l la rd  who has,  as  you  

know,  has been around th is  indust ry  fo r  a  long t ime,  was  

t ru ly  shocked when he came to  learn  o f  th is  amount .   Do 

you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR LAHER:    I  guess he  was not  par t  o f  the  negot ia t ions ,  

he  d id  no t  know the  process tha t  was done in  o rde r  to  ge t  10 

there .   As  I  say,  i t  was a  process o f  g ive  and take  and th is  

i s  what  they were  propos ing ,  i f  you  want  us  to  de l i ver  

qu icker,  you have got  to  g ive  us  b igger  advance payments 

tha t  we can b r ing  our  in f ras t ruc ture  here  a  b i t  qu icker.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Mr  Laher,  i t  g ives  one impress ion  

tha t  i t  may g ive  is  tha t  no  proper  –  e i ther  no  proper  

homework  had been done when 1 ,62  percent  was –  thought  

was the  r igh t  percentage and when somebody e lse  who had  

done h is  o r  her  p roper  homework  came up,  showed tha t  20 

th is  1 .62% was rea l l y  –  had no foundat ion .   E i ther  tha t  o r  

the  peop le  who  came up w i th  1 .62  had done the i r  

homework  bu t  there  is  some o ther  reason why they  agreed  

to  30%,  tha t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  unders tand because whatever  

was put  on  the  tab le  must  be  the  k ind  o f  fac tors  o r  th ings  
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tha t  wou ld  have  been taken in to  account  a t  a r r i v ing  a t  

1 .62 .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  no t?  

MR LAHER:    Ja .   Mr  Cha i r,  the  1 .62% was based  on the  

in i t ia l  b id  p roposa ls  tha t  we came to  as  par t  o f  the  tender  

p rocess tha t  were  eva lua ted r i gh t  up  f ron t ,  so  th is  was par t  

o f  the  2013 proposa l  tha t  came th rough.   

 The f ina l  30% was post  the  negot ia t ion  process.   So  

th rough the  nego t ia t ion  process the  b idders  wanted more  10 

upf ron t  advance  payments  in  o rder  to  se t  up  the i r  

manufac tur ing  fac i l i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  the  percentage shou ld  

change,  i s  i t  no t ,  because i f  you say –  i f  you  say i f  you  had  

put  in  a  f igure  as  opposed to  a  percentage and you had  

sa id ,  fo r  example ,  i t  must  be  R1  mi l l ion  tha t  i s  advance 

payment  and then la te r  on  you agreed to  R30 mi l l ion  and  

you say there  was a  change in  the  pr ice ,  you know,  the  

percentage might  have remained the  same.  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   But  i f  you  put  the  pe rcentage,  

one wou ld  have thought  tha t  you  are  taken in to  account  

every th ing  and the  percentage wou ld  remain  the  same or  i f  

there  i s  a  change,  i t  wou ld  no t  be  as  d ras t ic  a  change as 

th is .   That  i s  wha t  one wou ld  have thought .  
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MR LAHER:    Yes,  Cha i r,  so  up f ron t  i t  wou ld  have  been a  

percentage o f  the  b igger  ba tch .   So,  remember,  i t  was –  in  

the  va lua t ions i t  was a  fu l l  ba tch  o f  599.   When we were  

do ing  the  negot ia t ions  i t  i s  ha l f  a  ba tch  so  there fore ,  there   

i s  tha t  por t ion  to  take  care  o f  as  we l l  as  we l l  as  the  

negot ia t ions  in  te rms o f  because you want  a  qu icker  

de l i very  we need  more  cash upf ron t  so  tha t  we can se tup  

our  manufac tu r ing  fac i l i t i es  qu i cker  and tha t  was the  

negot ia t ions .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No but  i f  i t  i s  ha l f  a  ba tch ,  why  10 

wou ld  you need  f i f teen t imes more  advance payment?   

Sure l y  i t  works  the  o ther  way around? 

MR LAHER:    You need a   –  I  mean,  i t  i s  a  b igger  

percentage,  i t  i s  a  b igger  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Why?  I t  i s  ha l f  the  ba tch .  

MR LAHER:    So  mathemat ica l l y,  I  suppose,  and I  am jus t  

t ry ing  to  work  th is  ou t  in  my head,  1% o f  a  m i l l ion  i s  a  

cer ta in  amount  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  am not  ask  you tha t .   Why wou ld  

you need f i f teen  t imes more  because you a re  de l i ver ing 20 

ha l f  a  ba tch?  

MR LAHER:    You  wou ld  need more  up f ron t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Why?  

MR LAHER:    To  se tup  the  product ion  fac i l i t i es  up f ron t  and  

a lso  jus t  par t  –  I  th ink  maybe i t  was pa r t  o f  a  …[ in te rvenes]  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  you wou ld  need a  b igger  

p roduct ion  fac i l i t y  and you wou ld  need more  cash  i f  you 

were  produc ing  doub le  ba tch .  

MR LAHER:    I t  wou ld  be  probab ly  the  same product ion  

fac i l i t y.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  p rec ise ly.  

MR LAHER:    I t  i s  the  t ime pe r iod  over  wh ich  you a re  do ing  

i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  now i t  i s  down to  t ime?  

MR LAHER:    Ja  because now the  ba tch  is  cu t  and the  t ime 10 

per iod  fo r  de l i very  i s  a lso  cu t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  s t i l l ,  why do you need f i f teen 

t imes more  advance payment?   I  mean,  we are  no t  ta lk ing  

about  doub le .  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    We are  ta lk ing  about  po ten t ia l l y  

f i f teen t imes more .   How is  tha t  poss ib le?  

MR LAHER:    As  I  say,  i t  was  par t  o f  the  negot ia t ion  

process …[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  no ,  we  o f  course  know tha t  tha t  20 

does not  answer  the  quest ion .   You s ty le  yourse l f  as  an 

eyewi tness,  you were  there .  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  te l l  us  what  happened in  these  

negot ia t ions  tha t  caused someone to  agree to  30% 
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advance payment  tha t  causes Mr  Ca l la rd  to  be  shocked,  

someone who has been around th is  indust ry,  who sees th is  

as  an  out l ie r.    

MR LAHER:    So  pa r t  o f  the  process –  and tha t  i s  the 

exp lanat ion  tha t  was g iven to  us  by  the  b idders ,  tha t  we 

need fu r the r  amount  up f ron t  so  tha t  we can se tup  ou r  

p roduct ion  fac i l i t y  and a lso ,  i f  you  g ive  us  more  up f ron t ,  

there  is  a  d iscount  in  the  pr ice  as  par t  o f  the  negot ia t ion  

process.   So tha t  i s  what  they wou ld  have to ld  us  when we 

d id  the  negot ia t ions .  10 

 A t  the  end o f  the  day i t  was not  me tha t  accepted 

the  proposa l ,  i t  was obv ious ly  the  s teer ing  commi t tee  tha t  

accepted the  p roposa l  tha t  came f rom the  b idders .   I t  was 

s t i l l  someth ing  we were  negot ia t ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  am not  sure  tha t  I  fo l low the  

exp lanat ion ,  Mr  Laher.   I t  i s  qu i te  s t range,  to  say the  least ,  

bu t  maybe you have sa id  what  you are  ab le  to  say.   Mr  

Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you.   Then I  jus t  want  to  

dea l  w i th  two o ther  th ings.   The spreadsheets  –  le t  me jus t  20 

take  you perhaps  d i rec t l y  to  what  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  c r i t i c i sm o f  

your  answer  i s  so  we can shor t  c i r cu i t  some o f  th is .   Cou ld  

you go back to  the  t ransc r ip t  p lease a t  page 791.83? 

CHAIRPERSON:    791 po in t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    83 .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    83 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  Mr  Ca l la rd  says a t  l ine  16 ,  i s  

he  says:  

“ I  h igh l igh ted  numerous cons iderab le  anomal ies  i n  

the  sp readsheet .   Th i s  does not  address any o f  the  

anomal ies  in  the  spreadsheet  except  fo r  Mr  Laher ’s  

s ta tement  tha t  the  recorded what  the  b idders  

prov ided. ”  

And then he goes  on a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page:  

“He got  i t  f rom the  b idders ’ submiss ions and jus t  10 

recorded i t  and  I  have not  gone th rough poor  

s ta tements  l i ke  tha t .   My s ta tement  on  the  

spreadsheet  i s  tha t  they -  s tands tha t  the  anomal ies  

in  the  spreadsheet  s t i l l  per ta in  i f  Mr  S ingh jus t  –  Mr  

Laher  jus t  reco rded them,  tha t  i s  what  he  says,  bu t  

i t  does not  exp la in  any o f  the  anomal ies . ”  

So what  he  is  say ing ,  and you wou ld  have read th is .   He 

says look,  I  unders tand what  you say bu t  I  po in ted  out  

anomal ies  and you have done no  more  than say tha t  you 

recorded what  the  b idders  sa id .   What  i s  your  response to 20 

tha t?  

MR LAHER:    So  yes,  i t  was recorda l  bu t  I  a lso  po in ted  out  

anomal ies .   As  per  my ev idence yeste rday,  I  po in ted  out  a  

number  o f  anomal ies  as  par t  o f  the  negot ia t ion  process  

and I  ra ised those anomal ies ,  as  I  sa id  yeste rday,  w i th  the 
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ba tch  pr ic ing .   I  ra ised the  issue the  manner  i t  was  in  tha t  

and I  ra ised the  issue tha t  we  need to  go  back and 

eva lua te  because then we have  a  more  market - re la ted  

issue around the  best  p r ic ing .   I  ra ised the  issue around 

the  esca la t ion  so  yes,  I  a lso  ra ised these anomal ies  dur ing  

the  process,  the  spreadsheets  fo r  the  ou tcome o f  the  f ina l  

p r ic ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You see,  I  th ink  you  

mis…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am not  su re  bu t  I  thought  Mr  Myburgh ’s 10 

quest ion  was more  about  what  do  you say to  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  

s ta tement  tha t  a l l  you  cou ld  say was you were  record ing  

what  the  b idders  sa id  and you prov ided no  fu r ther  

exp lanat ion .   Am I  r igh t ,  Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  perhaps  i f  I  can  

pursue tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Le t  me take you to  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  

s ta tement  tha t  is  a t tached to  the  3 .3  no t ice .   A t  the 

beg inn ing  o f  the  f i le ,  page 503.57 .   Now we know tha t  Mr  20 

Ca l la rd  dea ls  w i th  th is  a t  parag raph 208 but  le t  me jus t  

g ive  you two examples .  

 208.4  Mr  Ca l la rd  says –  and he re  he  is  dea l ing  w i th  

the  sp readsheets :  

“The fo re ign  exchange components  amounts…” 
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Now we know you l i s ted  them and you get  them f rom the  

b idders .  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  tha t  i s  no t  the  po in t ,  he  says:  

“ . . .used in  the  f ina l  negot ia t ion  spreadsheet  wou ld  

cause some o f  the  locomot ives  no t  to  meet  loca l  

content  requ i rement . ”  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    He says we l l ,  you  do not  address 

tha t .  10 

MR LAHER:    I  do .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You s imp ly  say –  we l l ,  th is  i s  what  

he  is  say ing .  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  am g iv ing  you an oppor tun i ty.  

MR LAHER:    Yes ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    He say ing  the  best  answer  you have  

is  you s imp ly  record  what  the  b idders  sa id .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And he says in  so  do ing  you  are  no t  20 

answer ing  or  dea l ing  w i th  the  anomaly.  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  i s  you r  response to  tha t?  

MR LAHER:    R igh t ,  I  do  dea l  w i th  the  anomaly  in  my 

s ta tement ,  so  spec i f i ca l l y  we look  a t  28 .4 ,  I  d id  ra ise  the  
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i ssue about  loca l  content  d i rec t l y  w i th  Mr  Jayne and Ms 

Mal tese  and I  made i t  known to  them tha t  based  on the  

pr ic ing  tha t  has been o f fe red ,  these b idders  are  no t  go ing  

to  meet  the  loca l  content  requ i rements .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes bu t  you –  you aga in ,  Mr  

Ca l la rd ’s  po in t ,  he  says i n  your  answers  to  my concerns 

about  the  spreadsheet ,  a l l  you  say  in  re la t ion  to  th is  i s  you  

record  what  the  b idders  sa id ,  bu t  I  po in ted  out  an  anomaly,  

wh ich  you have not  dea l t  w i th .  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you accept  tha t  you d id  no t  dea l  

w i th  the  anomaly  nor  a re  you say ing  you d id?  

MR LAHER:    I  am say ing  I  d id  in  my s ta tement .   I  do  no t  

th ink  we covered i t  yes terday but  i t  was in  [ inaud ib le  –  

speak ing  s imul taneous ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    In  dea l ing  w i th  parag raph 208.4?  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  we w i l l  come to  tha t .   And then  

a t  paragraph …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    When you say you dea l t  w i th  i t  you  are  20 

not  say ing  your  ra ised i t  because Mr  Ca l la rd  i s  concerned 

about  you not  p rov id ing  an  exp lana t ion .  

MR LAHER:    R igh t ,  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you say ing  you d id  prov ide  an  

exp lanat ion?  
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MR LAHER:    I  d id  p rov ide  an  exp lanat ion  in  my s ta tement  

and I  ra ised the  issue.   I  th ink  i t  i s  in  one o f  the  

parag raphs in  my  s ta tement .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t  and then le t  us  go ,  fo r  

example ,  to  208.6 .    

“The d iese l  negot ia ted  p r ice  recon worksheet  

conta ins  inexp l i cab le  d iscounts  on  exchange ra te  

impact  and esca la t ion . ”   

What  do  you say to  tha t?  

MR LAHER:    We l l ,  as  per  my s ta tement  yes terday you w i l l  10 

see tha t  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  sheet  meant  no th ing ,  i t  was an 

i l l us t ra t i ve  ca lcu la t ion  and i t  d id  no t  go  anywhere .   I t  was  

pure ly  i l l us t ra t i ve  ca lcu la t ion  to  see where  we s tar ted  and  

where  we ended,  so  tha t  sheet  meant  no th ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then las t  th ing  tha t  I  want  to  jus t  

dea l  w i th  i s  the  reconc i l ia t ion  o f  the  bus iness case  and th is  

i s  the  paragraph  where  Mr  Ca l la rd  s ta tes  tha t  he  d id  no t  

th ink  you were  fo r thcoming w i th  the  in fo rmat ion .  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now you wou ld  have read the  20 

t ranscr ip t .   Perhaps I  can aga in  jus t  take  you d i rec t l y  to  

what  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  concern  u l t imate ly  seems to  have been.   

I f  you  go to  page 791.81.   He says a t  l ine  7 :  

“ Inso far  as  the  process goes I  s tand by  my po in t ,  i f  

Mr  Laher  had knowledge o f  the  spreadsheets  and  
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de ta i led  in fo rmat ion ,  tha t  he  was bound by  the  

conf ident ia l i t y  ag reement  bu t  cou ld  have h igh l igh ted  

tha t  to  the  eva lua t ion  group tha t  we cou ld  then  

e i ther  had access to  tha t  and proceeded on a  more  

in fo rmed bas is  w i th  our  eva lua t ion . ”  

So you wou ld  have seen what  h i s  compla in t  was u l t imate ly.  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  do  you say to  tha t?  

MR LAHER:    In  my s ta tement  I  sa id  I  d id  te l l  them I  was  

bound by  a  conf ident ia l i t y  agreement .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No.   Okay,  we l l  I  mean,  h is  po in t  i s  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You d id  te l l  h im? 

MR LAHER:    That  I  was bound by  a  conf ident ia l i t y  

agreement .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You to ld  Mr  Ca l la rd  tha t?  

MR LAHER:    Ja ,  I  th ink  I  d id  say tha t  in  my s ta tement ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  he  seems to  ind ica te  f rom h is  

perspect ive  –  and  I  must  jus t  pu t  h is  ve rs ion  to  you.  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  you d id  no t  do  tha t .  

MR LAHER:    And I  say  I  d id .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You d isag ree?  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Cha i rpe rson,  we have no  fu r ther  
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quest ions,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you.   Thank you,  Mr  Laher,  

fo r  coming.   I f  we need you aga in  we w i l l  ask  you to  come 

back bu t  thank you ve ry  much,  you are  now excused.  

MR LAHER:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  Cha i rperson,  I  had asked tha t  

we ad journ  now and then reconvene tomorrow to  hear  the  

ev idence o f  Mr  Mah langu.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Mah langu i s  ava i lab le  a t  n ine  10 

o ’c lock  i f  you  wou ld  pre fer  to  ge t  an  ea r l ie r  s ta r t ,  i t  be ing  a  

Fr iday,  bu t  we are  en t i re l y  in  your  hands.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  I  th ink  le t  us  

s ta r t  the  usua l  t ime,  ten  o ’c lock ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We –  you do no t  have an idea how long 

he might  be ,  hey?  Maybe two hours?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  am conf ident  tha t  he  w i l l  –  we 

shou ld  be  comple ted  w i th  h is  ev idence by  luncht ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    By  luncht ime,  ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Thank 20 

you,  we w i l l  ad journ  fo r  the  day.   We ad journ .  
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